
 

 

Environment 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

 

Date: Monday, 3rd December, 2007 

Time: 9.30 a.m. 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 
Hafod Road, Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the 
meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Paul James, Members' Services, Tel:01432 260 
460 Fax:01432 260286 
e-mail pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk 

  
 
 
 
County of Herefordshire 
District Council 

 

 



 
 



COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 3RD DECEMBER, 2007 
 
 

AGENDA 
for the Meeting of the Environment Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
To: Councillor RI Matthews (Chairman) 

Councillor KG Grumbley (Vice-Chairman) 
 
 Councillors JHR Goodwin, JW Hope MBE, MAF Hubbard, TW Hunt, MD Lloyd-

Hayes, PM Morgan, AT Oliver, A Seldon and PJ Watts 
 

  

  

 Pages 

  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting 

in place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
4. MINUTES     
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 9th November 

2007. 
 

   
Minutes of meeting held 9th November 2007   
  
While the printed paper version of the agenda indicates that the minutes are to 
follow the minutes have been inserted into this electronic version. 

 

  
5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 

FUTURE SCRUTINY   
  

   
 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 

Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 

   
6. HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S STRATEGY FOR BIODIVERSITY 

CONSERVATION   
1 - 14  

   
 To consider progress in the preparation of a Biodiversity Strategy for 

Herefordshire Council, and seek the views of the Environment Scrutiny 
Committee upon the draft document. 

 

   
7. POLYTUNNEL DEVELOPMENTS IN HEREFORDSHIRE   15 - 16  
   
 To consider progress in the control of polytunnel development in the 

County since the matter was last considered by this Committee in March 
2007 when the findings of the Polytunnel Review Working Group were 
reported. 

 

   
8. ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE PLAN: PERFORMANCE FOR THE SIX-

MONTH PERIOD TO SEPTEMBER 2007   
17 - 30  



 
MONTH PERIOD TO SEPTEMBER 2007   

   
 To update Members on the progress towards achievement of the targets 

for 2007-08 in the Directorate Plan. 
 

   
9. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME   31 - 34  
   
 To consider the Committee work programme.  
   
 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Adult Social Care 
and Strategic Housing, Childrens’ Services, Community Services, 
Environment, and Health.  A Strategic Monitoring Committee scrutinises 
corporate matters and co-ordinates the work of these Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 

•  Help in developing Council policy 
 

• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions 
before and after decisions are taken 

 

• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised 
by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public 

 

• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny 
Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further 
scrutiny. 

 

• Review performance of the Council 
 

• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 

• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information 
on your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out 
overleaf 
 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committees to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present if 
they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and consider 
whether it should form part of the Committee’s work programme when 
compared with other competing priorities. 

Please note that the Committees can only scrutinise items which fall within 
their specific remit (see below).  If a matter is raised which falls within the 
remit of another Scrutiny Committee then it will be noted and passed on to 
the relevant Chairman for their consideration.   

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an item 
listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask then 
please submit it no later than two working days before the meeting to 
the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an answer can be 
provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the Committee Officer can be 
found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committees are not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 



 
Remits of Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committees 
 
Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing 
 
Statutory functions for adult social services including: 
Learning Disabilities 
Strategic Housing 
Supporting People 
Public Health 
 
Children’s Services 
 
Provision of services relating to the well-being of children including 
education, health and social care. 
 
Community Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
Libraries 
Cultural Services including heritage and tourism 
Leisure Services 
Parks and Countryside 
Community Safety 
Economic Development 
Youth Services 
 
Health 
 
Planning, provision and operation of health services affecting the area 
Health Improvement 
Services provided by the NHS 
 
Environment 
 
Environmental Issues 
Highways and Transportation 
 
Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Corporate Strategy and Finance 
Resources  
Corporate and Customer Services 
Human Resources 
 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 
business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this 
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal 
with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for 
visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
Public Transport Links 
 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in 
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / 
Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction 
with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 

 

 

 

 
Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-

inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the 

Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

 



 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at 
the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken 
to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the 
building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 



COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Environment Scrutiny 
Committee held at The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 
Hafod Road, Hereford on Friday, 9th November, 2007 at 
9.30 a.m. 
  

Present: Councillor RI Matthews (Chairman) 
Councillor  KG Grumbley (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Councillors: GFM Dawe, JHR Goodwin, JW Hope MBE, TW Hunt, 

MD Lloyd-Hayes, PM Morgan, AT Oliver, A Seldon and PJ Watts 
 

  
In attendance: Councillors PA Andrews, WLS Bowen, PJ Edwards and DB Wilcox 

(Cabinet Member – Highways and Transportation) 
  
  
22. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
  
 Apologies were received from Councillor MAF Hubbard. 
  
23. NAMED SUBSTITUTES   
  
 Councillor GFM Dawe substituted for Councillor MAF Hubbard. 
  
24. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
  
 During discussion on agenda item 11 Review of Household Waste Recycling in 

Herefordshire – Councillor PJ Edwards declared a personal interest as the former 
Cabinet Member (Environment). 

  
25. MINUTES   
  
 Prior to the meeting Councillor GFM Dawe had submitted a number of suggested 

amendments to the minutes, copies of which were available prior to the meeting.  
Councillor GFM Dawe and Councillor M Lloyd-Hayes expressed concerns that the 
minutes should contain a fuller record of the meeting in that the minutes didn't 
mention there being no specific budget for scrutiny or the estimated cost of 
undertaking a scoping report.  The Head of Legal and Democratic Services reminded 
Members that minutes were not a verbatim record but a summary of proceedings 
that included only the essence of the discussion and the decision.   While in most 
cases the suggested amendments added to the understanding of the meeting the 
Committee agreed that the printed Minutes represented an accurate record. 
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 24th September 2007 be 
approved and signed by the Chairman. 
 

  
26. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE 

SCRUTINY   
  
 A Member of the public made general comments in relation to road safety which 

were noted. 
  



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 9TH NOVEMBER, 2007 

 

 

27. PRESENTATION BY CABINET MEMBER (HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION)   
  
 The Committee received a presentation by Councillor DB Wilcox, Cabinet Member 

(Highways and Transportation) on key issues in his portfolio area. A copy of his 
presentation has been appended to the agenda in the minute book. 
 
The Cabinet Member reported on four main areas namely: an overview of the 
Highways and Transport service; achievement in 2006/07; funding, and work 
underway and for the future. 
 
An overview of the Highways and Transport service.  He highlighted the wide range 
of important services provided; the Council’s strategy towards implementing the 
Local Transport Plan (LTP) and that the Service had been awarded the Centre of 
Excellence award following its successes in road safety and providing public 
transport services. Information packs had also been provided to other highway 
authorities setting out best practice in 11 areas of operation.   
 
Achievement during 2006/07. He then commented on the areas of: Key Performance 
including helping pedestrians by the restoration of the Victoria Footbridge; promoting 
sustainable transport including school travel plans, work place travel plans, cycle 
parking and new cycle routes. Supporting Public Transport including increased 
patronage, free travel for people over 60 and travel corridor enhancement.  Further 
achievements included the excellent response by the service to the July flooding and 
in maintaining the massive network of highways, which included bridges and street 
lighting.   
 
Funding.  He highlighted that capital funding under the LTP including the 
LPSA2G/SRSG totalled £10,889.000.  Following completion of a good submission a 
Government bonus of 5% had been expected, however, the Government had 
reduced the bonus scheme to 3%.  The LTP covered the period 2001/2 to 2010/11 
and while the level of annual funding during the early years had been increasing he 
warned that levels of funding were now decreasing.  There were also issues 
concerning supporting the revenue funding from LTP funding.  On general revenue 
funding he reported that this stood at £9,266,000 being approximately 5% of the 
Council Tax. 
 
Work underway and the future. He highlighted a number of schemes or 
developments including: tackling flooding in Hereford and Ross-on-Wye; the cost of 
the Streetscene service; the Rotherwas Access Road which was due for completion 
in Spring 2008 and the Holme Lacy Road improvements which were on track for 
completion.  He encouraged Members to vote in the bid for Sustrans Connect 2 – 
Rotherwas River Wye Crossing Big Lottery funding.  Due to ongoing negotiations he 
was unable to confirm the site of the Northern Park and Ride site.  Negotiations were 
also underway for a site on the South side of the City.  The Service was working with 
the ESG Co (Edgar Street Grid) to help clarify transport benefits and ensure impacts 
were properly mitigated.  Work was underway on road safety improvements and 
speed indicating devices.  Various initiatives to improve public transport, including 
rail, were being developed or underway. 
 
On questioning the Cabinet Member (Highways and Transportation) the Committee 
noted the following points: 
 

• A number of parish councils received payment under the ‘Lengthsman’ 
scheme to undertake a range of predefined works, however, should further 
works be required then these would be considered. 

• Regular meetings were held with bus operators to discuss provision, 
subsidies and timetabling, which included representatives of Children’s 



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 9TH NOVEMBER, 2007 

 

 

Services Directorate to represent school bus provision.  The monitoring, 
including spot checks, of subsidised services was undertaken.  A suggestion 
was made whether school busses returning to their depots could be utilised 
as services busses.  Also during debate an issue was raised whether 
operators allowed bicycles and dogs onto busses. 

• Talks continued with the Highways Agency concerning road safety on trunk 
roads in the County. 

• While £1.2m was received from the government towards concessionary fares 
the Council still provided a subsidy. 

• If the County failed to win Big Lottery funding for the Sustrans Rotherwas 
cycle/walkway then the Council would need to look at where it placed this 
project in its transport priorities. 

• A view was expressed that the Council could do more to improve rail travel 
through membership of rail partnerships.  Also that the Council could 
consider employing a rail officer. 

• Responding to a claim that an Outer Distributor Road was contra to the 
intentions of the Carbon Reduction Plan the Cabinet Member (Highways and 
Transportation) replied that moving traffic created less emissions than 
standing traffic and that the emissions from moving traffic were more 
dispersed.   

• The term Outer Distributor road more accurately described the function of the 
road.  i.e. it will distribute traffic around the city rather then simply allow long 
distance "through traffic" to bypass the city. 

 
The Chairman thanked Councillor DB Wilcox Cabinet Member (Highways and 
Transportation) for his presentation and answering the Committee questions. 

  
28. REPORT BY CABINET MEMBER (ENVIRONMENT AND STRATEGIC HOUSING)   
  
 Director of Environment gave an oral overview of key elements of the Environment 

programme area on behalf of the Cabinet Member (Environment and Strategic 
Housing). 
 
The Director of Environment and the Head of Planning Services highlighted the 
following issues: 

• elements of the waste subject would be mentioned during a later agenda item 
however, it was noted that the joint waste contract with Worcestershire was 
complex and crucial and that major penalties could be incurred in the future if 
the contract was wrong.  The current collection contract was being reviewed, 
the correct infrastructure needed to be in place to deal with the resultant 
waste and significant investment would be needed. 

• the service was consulting on implementing the National initiative ‘score on 
the door’ scheme.  Following a food hygiene inspection of the premises the 
score would be publicly displayed on the premises door there by providing a 
competitive advantage to premises with good hygiene standards.  The 
Committee also noted that under a new inspection regime wherever possible 
inspections would be combined to reduce the number of visits and disruption 
to premises.  

• Discussions were ongoing concerning increasing the level of service provided 
during out of hours towards antisocial behaviour (noise) issues. As part of 
this discussion meetings were being held with the police to co-ordinate 
actions and pool data. 

• Good progress was being made with the Local Development Framework, 
which would replace the UDP and provide the core strategy to 2026. Officer 
and member involvement was needed to consider the infrastructure 
implications in meeting the regional planning targets. 



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 9TH NOVEMBER, 2007 

 

 

• Edgar Street Grid (ESG) development would provide a key focus to new 
housing in the City. A Supplementary planning documents had been 
completed. ESG are working with three shortlisted developers to discus pre 
planning application issues. A planning application for the site was expected 
in 2008. 

• Work was ongoing concerning the Biodiversity Action Plan on which a report 
would be made to the December meeting of the Committee.  The Plan 
facilitated the drawing down of government funding and considered issues 
concerning new or existing conservation areas. 

• Planning application numbers and fees were holding up well.  The Service 
were looking to upgrade the IT system in 2008 to enable planning 
applications and correspondence to be electronically scanned and made 
readily available. 

 
Questioned on the provision of new housing the Committee noted that the UDP 
would continue for a further 3 years.  There would need to be broader thinking 
around the type of housing provided and infrastructure provision to enable the 
16,500 new homes to be encompassed in the UDP.  
 
Responding to questions on whether the Council could impose higher building 
standards to require developers to provided eco-style housing the Head of Planning 
Services reported that the Council could only invite developers to comply.  He 
remarked that the larger developers may be willing to work to higher standards, 
however, economic issues seemed to prevail concerning the development of small 
plots by local developers.  He hoped that the national regulations would be revised to 
reflect eco-policies. 
 
The Committee further noted that issues concerning procedure and guidance on 
‘planning obligations’ would be the subject of a report to Cabinet. 
 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 
 

  
29. ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE RESTRUCTURE   
  
 The Committee received an oral update from the Director of Environment on the 

restructure of the Environment Directorate. 
 
The Director reported that he had inherited the 2007/08 budget for the Directorate.  
He had therefore had to consider the future financial position based on the Council’s 
Medium Term Financial Strategy.  In line with this the Directorate’s budgets would 
not receive any uplift for non-salary inflation, which would be further affected by 
recent increases in fuel charges.  Added to this he needed to address the cost of 
improving the IT systems in the directorate and make further moves to co-locate staff 
to improve efficiency, and to improve staff development and training. 
 
Due to the outcome of the Comprehensive Spending Review and levels of inflation, 
he anticipated needing to make £1.8m of savings.  He was therefore looking at a 
number of options including a maximum reduction of 60 personnel posts in the 
Directorate.. He currently estimated that this would involve approximately 40 posts 
resulting in 20 to 25 redundancies.  A project board had been set up involving 
Members, staff and unions, to oversee the review.  He had also set up a project 
team to look at maximising the budget and a review of the contract with Amey Wye 
Valley Ltd had been initiated with a remit to save £1m without reducing the service.  
 
He anticipated that the review would be completed by the end of January 2008 with 



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 9TH NOVEMBER, 2007 

 

 

the aim of implementing changes by the end of April 2008, however, he emphasised 
that the Council needed to get it right so the timetable may vary. 
 
Questioned on cuts to services he categorically assured the Committee there would 
be no reductions to services provided investment was made in IT services and staff 
were co-located. 
 
The Committee briefly discussed the issues concerning the availability of a suitable 
building to co-locate staff and the Councils ability to vary the Amey Wye Valley Ltd 
contract.   
 
A number of Members expressed concern regarding when they had been informed 
of the proposals. 
 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 

  
30. CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING   
  
 Members were advised of progress of the 2007/08 Capital Programme for 

Environment within the overall context of the Herefordshire Capital Programme. 
 
The Director of Resources representative reported that the total of the Capital 
Programme had increased to £28,931,000, as set out in appendix 1 to the agenda 
report, from £27,004,000 notified to the 19 June 2007 meeting. This was a net 
increase of £1,927,000 and details of these budget changes were set out in the 
agenda report. 
 
On scrutinising the report the Committee noted that: 
 

• Finance for improvements or developments to the cycle network were spread 
over a number of budget headings.  It was also noted that while the cycle 
network wasn’t extensive in the market towns this issues was being looked 
at. 

• Responding to whether the current unspent budget for traffic calming could 
be spent in villages the Committee noted that any underspend would be 
reallocated to other parts of the LTP programme. 

• The Director of Environment confirmed that funding was being sought to 
undertake archaeological investigations on either side of the Rotherwas 
Ribbon site. 

• Questioned on the repayment period under prudential borrowing the 
Committee noted that this was dependant on the type of scheme and the life 
of the asset, which could be over 10 to 20 years. 

 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 
 

  
31. REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING   
  
 The Committee were advised of the financial position for the Environment 

Programme area budgets for the period to 30th September 2007. 
 
The Director of Resources representative reported that it was expected that the 
Environment Revenue budget for 2007/08 will be underspent by a net amount of 
£357,000.  He reported that the Environment revenue budget for 2007/08 had 
reduced from the amount reported in June 2007 (£25,021,000) to £24,741,000. The 



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 9TH NOVEMBER, 2007 

 

 

reduction of £280,000 was set out in the agenda report. 
 
While scrutinising the Revenue report the Committee noted the following points in 
response to questions raised: 
 

• Clarification was given concerning the transfer of staff, and resultant transfer 
of staffing budgets, to the ‘info by phone’ team. 

• Following the ending by the City Council of the service level agreement for 
various services the highways and transportation budget had been allocated 
an additional income budget in relation to Christmas Lights. 

• Questioned on the levels of fee income and staffing costs the committee 
noted that the report and appendix was a top-level report to indicate 
expenditure at budget head levels.  While a more detailed report could be 
provided the Director of Environment reported that his services managers 
were currently undertaking a performance cost comparison against other 
authorities. 

 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 

  
32. REVIEW OF HOUSEHOLD WASTE RECYCLING IN HEREFORDSHIRE   
  
 The Committee considered the further findings of the scrutiny review of Household 

Waste Recycling in Herefordshire. 
 
The Chairman of the Review Group, Councillor KG Grumbley, reported that the 
review Group had submitted its findings in March 2007 (appendix 1 to the agenda 
report) however, it was agreed that the report be held over pending the then awaited 
results of the Governments review of the National Waste Strategy.  The Committee 
in June 2007 agreed that Councillor Grumbley, together with Councillor PJ Edwards, 
review the scrutiny findings in light of the governments review and resubmit the 
scrutiny report. 
 
 Councillor KG Grumbley reported the review had been carried out in accordance 
with the scoping statement (appendix 1 to the report) and provided a detailed 
commentary on the original report.  He then commented on the implications for 
Herefordshire arising from the Government’s Review of the National Waste Strategy 
and highlighted that as anticipated the Government had set higher targets for 
recycling and composting of household waste and would be increasing the standard 
rate of landfill tax, as indicated in the supplementary report. 
 
He further reported that since compiling the report and supplemental report he had 
learned that the new waste collection contract for Herefordshire was unlikely to come 
into operation until Summer 2009 when a new recycling plant should be operational 
near Worcester.  Based on this assumption he recommended that the Cabinet 
Member (Environment and Strategic Housing) consider further extending the current 
coloured bag collection system to areas of the County not currently covered.  He 
further commented that the Cabinet Member (Environment and Strategic Housing) 
had indicated to him that he was currently minded to introduce weekly black bin 
(residual waste) collection with recycled materials being collected fortnightly. 
 
The Chairman suggested that in view of concerns over alternate weekly collections 
and the change to wheelie bins that a seminar on waste collection and disposal 
options be held for all members and that at the same time all town and parish 
councils be consulted over this sensitive issue. 
 
Questioned on the recycling of commercial waste the Committee noted that this 
comprised a sizable element of the waste stream and a number of members 



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 9TH NOVEMBER, 2007 

 

 

suggested that the Council should encourage the Government to take on the issue of 
reducing this element of waste. 
 
Responding to a number of questions the Director of Environment commented that: 
the judicial review appeal for the planning application at Madley  (proposed 
autoclave facility) was that morning being heard in the High Court. The issues of 
wheelie bin use at terrace premises would need serious consideration.  Black bags 
left in the street constituted fly tipping and could, as a first resort, be tackled by fixed 
penalty notices.  
 
The Committee questioned the capital cost of changing to wheelie bins compared 
with the cost of black bags.  In response the Waste Services Manager reported that 
from a study undertaken by WRAP, bag collection for refuse and recycling was the 
most expensive form of collection. If Herefordshire changed to wheelie bins then the 
cost of the bins and the change to the collection fleet could be factored into the cost 
of the collection contract. 
 
In view of the range of issues concerning waste collection and disposal three 
Members suggested deferring consideration of the report until after the previously 
suggested seminar. 
 
The Committee considered whether it wished to approve the report including 
supplementary recommendations or defer consideration until the after a seminar on 
waste collection and disposal.  The Committee decided to agree the report and 
supplementary recommendations. 
 
RESOLVED: that 
 

a) subject to part b below the Committee agree the findings of the original 
Household Waste Recycling in Herefordshire review and the 
supplementary recommendations identified in the agenda report for 
submission to the Cabinet Member (Environment & Strategic Housing); 

b) The Committee strongly recommends that before any further 
consideration is given to the suggestion of alternate weekly collections 
and the change-over to "wheelie bins", that a seminar on Waste 
Collection and Disposal Options be held for all members, and that at the 
same time, all Town and Parish Councils be consulted over this very 
sensitive issue; 

c) The Executives response to the Review including an action plan be 
reported to the first available meeting of the Committee after the 
Executive has approved its response; and 

d) A further report on progress in response to the Review then be made 
after six months with consideration being given to the need for any 
further reports to be made. 

 
  
33. REVIEW OF TRAVELLERS POLICY - UPDATE   
  
 The Committee received an update on the progress of the scrutiny review of the 

Council’s Travellers’ Policy. 
 
The Head of Environmental Health and Trading Standards representative reported 
that in December 2006 an initial draft policy had been produced and considered for 
consultation, however, subsequent work at sub-regional level in the area of 
Travellers’ Housing Needs had necessitated further work on the policy being 
temporarily put on hold.  While the outcome of the sub-regional Travellers’ Housing 
Needs work was still awaited, other work on the policy had progressed to a point 



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 9TH NOVEMBER, 2007 

 

 

where it was considered appropriate to hold further meetings of the review group. It 
was anticipated that the findings of the review group would be reported to Committee 
in March 2008. 
 
RESOLVED: That the current position regarding the review of the Travellers’ 
Policy be noted and the findings of the review be reported for consideration to 
the March 2008 meeting of the Committee. 

  
34. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME   
  
 The Committee considered its work programme as set out at appendix 1 to the 

report. 
 
The Committee decided that the Waste Strategy issue, referred from Strategic 
Monitoring Committee, be considered following the seminar on waste collection and 
disposal, referred to earlier in minute No. 32. 
 
In relation to the two parking issues raised by Councillor MAF Hubbard the 
Committee agreed that Members inform the Head of Highways and Transportation of 
issues and that a report be presented to the March 2008 meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: that subject to the above the Committee work programme be 
approved. 

  
The meeting ended at 12.55 p.m. CHAIRMAN 
 



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3RD DECEMBER, 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Bill Bloxsome, Conservation Manager on 
(01432) 261783 

 

 
StrategyforBiodiversityreportDec070.doc  

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL’S STRATEGY FOR 
BIODIVERSITY CONSERVATION 

Report By: Director of Environment  

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To consider progress in the preparation of a Biodiversity Strategy for Herefordshire 
Council, and seek the views of the Environment Scrutiny Committee upon the draft 
document. 

Financial Implications 

2. The adoption of the strategy will not of itself have any direct financial consequences. 
However it will not be possible to meet fully all the objectives and actions in the 3-
year strategy within the existing budgets of those services responsible for 
implementing the actions identified. The intention should, however be to make 
progress in all the areas described within the strategy, and monitoring progress 
should identify whether resources need to be redirected. The funding of many 
activities is complicated: for example some are pursued through combination of 
funding with partners; some through encouraging other organisations to pursue them 
independently; some through bids to grant giving bodies; and some through 
realigning budgets. In some areas the Council has statutory obligations to meet 
duties and responsibilities; while others are driven by the need to meet targets. In 
both instances budgets should reflect this. The key to determining whether budgets 
need to be realigned is a comprehensive and effective monitoring procedure (see 
paragraph 11 below).  

Background 

3. Environment Scrutiny Committee, 12th March 2007 recommended the Cabinet 
Member for Environment develop a Biodiversity Strategy for the Council, carrying out 
internal consulting and seeking the views of this Committee, in particular in the light 
of advice anticipated by DEFRA arising from a new biodiversity duty placed on public 
authorities. A report was to be submitted to this Committee in September but 
deferred until December because of the extent of other business. A draft strategy 
document was circulated to Committee members at the March meeting. 

4. The draft strategy was circulated within the Council and a copy also placed on its 
website. In addition to the Environment Directorate, those services most closely 
involved with matters where biodiversity issues may arise include Property Services 
(especially in relation to small holdings, land holdings such as Rotherwas Industrial 
estate, and school grounds maintenance) and the Parks, Countryside and Leisure 
Development Services (especially parks, open space, commons).  Both those 
Services have identified areas where they are undertaking or could undertake 
measures to enhance biodiversity. Although they have and will continue to seek 

AGENDA ITEM 6

1



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3RD DECEMBER, 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Bill Bloxsome, Conservation Manager on 
(01432) 261783 

 

 
StrategyforBiodiversityreportDec070.doc  

resources, including from external sources to undertake work that contributes to 
increasing biodiversity, funding and staff resources remain issues. 

5. Since the March meeting DEFRA has issued guidance to public authorities in general 
and local authorities more specifically upon how they should have regard to the 
conservation biodiversity which is a new duty under section 40 of the Natural 
Environment and Rural Communities Act 2007.  Appendix 1 attached is a briefing 
note upon implementing the “new biodiversity duty”, derived from the DEFRA 
guidance. 

6. Officers have reviewed the draft biodiversity strategy (Appendix 2 is issued as a 
separate document) in the light of the DEFRA guidance, comments received and 
changes in Government’s approach to national indicators. The six objectives and 
associated actions and projects included within the draft Biodiversity Strategic 
compare closely with those activities described in the DEFRA advice. A comparison 
between the two has been made and a summary is set out in Appendix 3. It can be 
seen from this that there are a limited number of actions and projects described in 
the draft Biodiversity Strategy that are not reflected in the DEFRA guidance. The 
Council should, nevertheless continue to promote these and they have the support of 
the wider Biodiversity Partnership work especially in relation to implementing the 
LBAP. 

7. There are also a limited number of actions suggested in the DEFRA guidance that 
are not included in the draft Biodiversity Strategy. These include: 

• Local Biodiversity Action Plans are among the elements local authorities should 
build upon when preparing Community Strategies (Section 2.4 of the guidance); 

• Local Area Agreements (LAAs) provide an opportunity for local authorities to take 
action to deliver positive outcomes for biodiversity, cross cutting with health, 
community cohesion and education (Section 2.5); and  

• Green Infrastructure (the multi-function and benefits of greenspace in concert 
with land development as distinct from open space planning) can play a positive 
role in achieving the objectives of clean air, water, soil and biodiversity 
conservation (Section 2.7)  

8. Integration of biodiversity fully into the Community Strategy is an objective being 
pursued by Herefordshire Environment Partnership, upon which this Council is 
represented. Protection of the environment is identified as a key local issue under the 
Community Strategy theme ‘Safer and Stronger Communities’ and the Herefordshire 
Biodiversity Action Plan is referred to. 

9. Reference is made in the DEFRA guidance to the possibility of drawing up local 
priority biodiversity targets for inclusion within LAAs. Since publication of this advice, 
however, Government has commenced a process of reducing the number of national 
indicators to less than 200 from which each local strategic partnership can pick up to 
35. A draft list has been issued for consultation and it includes a national indicator 
(reference - NI197) for “Improved local biodiversity – active management of local 
sites”. The definition of what this will encompass is expected at the end of November 
and should this advice be received in time, the committee will be advised verbally. It 
is expected that even if this indicator is not chosen as one that should be monitored 
as part of the negotiated LAA it will have to be reported on and may influence any 
Corporate Area Assessment for the Council.   

2



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3RD DECEMBER, 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Bill Bloxsome, Conservation Manager on 
(01432) 261783 

 

 
StrategyforBiodiversityreportDec070.doc  

10. Green infrastructure is an emerging concept whereby a range of environmental land 
uses and designations are looked at in a comprehensive study, which forms the 
basis for an integrated green infrastructure strategy to be implemented, primarily, 
through the Local Development Framework. Government Office for the West 
Midlands is funding such a study for Herefordshire as part of the work considered 
necessary following the ‘growth point’ designation. The study phase should be 
completed in February 2008 and followed then by the development of the strategy.  

11. The strategy defines a monitoring system to measure effectiveness and 
performance. One target for each objective is specifically highlighted. It is also 
suggested that service plans’, strategies and guidance be monitored. These should 
also indicate whether the appropriate level of resources is available to meet the 
strategy and, more particularly the Council’s obligations under the new biodiversity 
duty. Should the strategy be agreed, discussions will take place with those services 
directly responsible for specific actions and projects to determine the most 
appropriate way of reporting regularly on progress to the Environment Scrutiny 
Committee. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the 
a) The draft Biodiversity Strategy is amended to make reference to the 

work being undertaken to prepare a green infrastructure strategy as 
part of the evidence basis and approach to the Local Development 
Framework. b)b)b)b)    Subject to any amendments the Committee may wish to make the 
Committee recommend the Cabinet Member (Environment and 
Strategic Housing) approve the Biodiversity Strategy 2007 - 2010; and c)c)c)c)    The Cabinet Member (Environment and Strategic Housing) agree and 
implement reporting arrangements upon progress towards achieving 
the actions, projects and targets within the Biodiversity Strategy, 
following discussions with relevant services 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• Herefordshire Council Environment Scrutiny Committee Report -12
th
 March 2007 

• Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 

• Guidance for Local Authorities on Implementing the Biodiversity Duty – DEFRA, May 2007 

• Guidance for Public Authorities on Implementing the Biodiversity Duty – DEFRA, May 2007 

• The Community Strategy for Herefordshire – The Herefordshire Partnership, 2006 

• Herefordshire’s Biodiversity Action Plan – Herefordshire Biodiversity Partnership, 2005 

• Planning to Halt the Loss of Biodiversity – British Standards Institute, 2006 

• The New Performance Framework for Local Authorities and Local Authority Partnerships – 
DCLG, October 2007 

 

 

3



4



APPENDIX 1 
 
BRIEFING NOTE: BIODIVERSITY DUTY 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC) 
places a duty upon public bodies. It states: 
 “Every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard so far as 
is consistent with the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving 
biodiversity”.  
 
1.2 Government guidance (DEFRA) has been produced, separately, for local 
authorities and other public bodies to assist them fulfil this duty. 
 
2. Definitions 
 
2.1 Biodiversity  – “the variety of life on earth, including all species of plants and 
animals and the natural systems that support them”. 
 
2.2 Conserving biodiversity – “includes restoring and enhancing species populations 
and habitats as well as protecting them”. 
 
3. The Importance of Biodiversity 
 
3.1 In addition to being important in its own right, biodiversity underpins local quality 
of life, gives a sense of place and offers opportunities for tourism, economic 
development, health promotion, sustainable communities and social cohesion. We 
also have international responsibilities with national and local systems in place to 
protect and enhance it. 
 
4. Local Authority Good Practice 
 
4.1 Four areas of activity are specifically highlighted where local authorities can play 
an important role in conserving biodiversity include: 
 

• Leading through integrating biodiversity with local policies and strategies – 
making this a corporate priority; improving delivery through local policies; 
including this within Community Strategies, Local Area Agreements and 
Housing Renewal; delivering through partnership working 

• Managing local authority controlled land and buildings – managing designated 
sites, green infrastructure, road verges, and school grounds amongst others. 

• Planning, infrastructure and development – supporting national planning 
policy; environmental and sustainability appraisals; including within forward 
planning and development control. 

• Education, advice and awareness – within the education system; provision of 
advice to a range of interests; community engagement and awareness 
raising. 

 
 
5. Implementing the Duty 
 
5.1 The guidance proposes that to demonstrate it has fulfilled its biodiversity duty a 
local authority should show it has:  

5



• Identified and taken opportunities to integrate biodiversity considerations into 
all relevant service areas and functions, and ensured that biodiversity is 
protected and enhanced in line with current statutory requirements; 

• Raised awareness of staff, managers and elected members with regard to 
biodiversity issues; 

• Demonstrated a commitment and contribution to key initiatives, in particular 
through performing a key role in relation to the Local Biodiversity Action Plan 
(LBAP), supporting the Local and/or Regional Record Centres, and playing 
the lead role in establishing a Local Site systems; and 

• Demonstrated progress against biodiversity indicators and targets.  
 
5.2 The need for additional expenditure in cases where local authorities are not 
meeting current statutory commitments cannot be discounted although there is 
thought to be scope for transferring costs through changing land management 
regimes. A range of potential external sources of money is highlighted, as is involving 
volunteers and local communities, and working in partnership with other 
organisations. Promoting cultural change through training and awareness and linking 
biodiversity measures with other programmes are also suggested to minimise the 
cost of fulfilling the biodiversity duty.     
 
5.3 The guidance identifies the following key activities that Government indicates 
local authorities should be able to demonstrate: 
 

• Providing leadership in the community – increasing the profile of biodiversity 
across the authority’s functions. 

• Examining opportunities to integrate biodiversity considerations into all 
relevant service areas and functions, taking steps to implement the 
opportunities identified. 

• Managing local authority land holdings – a compliant local authority will 
manage its own sites in a way that is sensitive to biodiversity.  

• Making efforts to raise awareness of all staff, managers and elected members 
with regard to biodiversity issues. 

• Demonstrate a commitment and contribution to key local biodiversity 
initiatives, such as LBAPs and contributing to delivery outcomes, for BAP and 
LBAP listed priority species and habitats, where appropriate. 

• Use of information and data and demonstrating progress against key 
biodiversity indicators, such as through Local Record Centres and Local 
Biodiversity Partnerships. 

• Progress against any biodiversity indicator included in the local government 
performance framework. 

 
5.4 A number of biodiversity indicators are suggested from a range of sources that 
could be used to measure performance and also used as the basis for drawing up 
local priority targets for Local Area Agreements. 
 
6. Other Public Authorities 
 
6.1 Biodiversity conservation is not simply an environmental issue but a core 
component of sustainable development. Not only does it cut across a range of local 
authority services but other public services also. There are opportunities to deliver 
biodiversity conservation through Local Strategic Partnerships, Sustainable 
Community Strategies and Local Area Agreements.  
 

6



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

: 
C

o
m

p
a

ri
s

o
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 D

ra
ft

 B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 D
E

F
R

A
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 o

n
 

s
4

0
 D

u
ty

 
 

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 
B

io
d

iv
e

rs
it

y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 –

 P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

A
c

ti
o

n
s

  
D

E
F

R
A

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 (

T
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
s
e
c
ti

o
n

 
w

h
e
re

 g
u

id
a
n

c
e
 c

a
n

 b
e
 f

o
u

n
d

 i
s
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d

 t
o

) 

A
c
ti
o
n
 1

.1
 –

 P
la

y
 a

 l
e
a
d
in

g
 r

o
le

 p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g

 
th

e
 L

B
A

P
. 

 
S

e
c
ti
o
n
 2

.8
 –

 L
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 k
e
y
 r

o
le

 
to

 p
la

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

e
le

c
ti
o
n
, 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
s
it
e
s
 f

o
r 

n
a
tu

re
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 B

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 1

.2
 –

 E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 o

th
e
rs

 t
o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 
in

 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
s
e
e
k
in

g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2

.8
 –

 L
B

A
P

s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g

. 
T

h
e
y
 s

e
c
u
re

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

fr
o
m

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
fu

n
d
e
rs

 t
o
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
 p

la
n
s
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 1

.3
 -

 P
la

y
 a

n
 a

c
ti
v
e
 r

o
le

 i
n
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g

 p
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 h
a
b
it
a
ts

 a
n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ie

s
. 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2

.8
 –

 A
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 k
e
y
 r

o
le

 
to

 p
la

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

e
le

c
ti
o
n
, 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
s
it
e
s
 f

o
r 

n
a
tu

re
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 B

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 1

 –
 T

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
-

o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a
l 

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 (

L
B

A
P

).
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 1

.4
 –

 A
s
s
is

t 
w

it
h
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

B
A

P
 t

a
rg

e
ts

. 
S

e
c
ti
o
n
 2

.8
 -

 L
B

A
P

s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g

. 
 …

…
th

e
y
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 

re
c
o
rd

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 2

 –
 T

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
n
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 b

y
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 2

.1
 –

 B
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
in

g
 a

n
d
 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 a
 B

A
P

 C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t

o
 

in
v
o
lv

e
 a

ll 
s
e
c
to

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
 

th
e
 B

A
P

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2

.8
 –

 L
B

A
P

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 r

a
is

e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

d
u
c
a
te

 a
ll 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

m
e
d
ia

…
. 

h
a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

 w
e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
e
x
p
e
rt

is
e
. 

7



A
c
ti
o
n
 2

.2
 –

 P
ro

v
id

e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 a
n
d
 

s
tu

d
y
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5

.4
 –

 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
n
g

 b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
n
to

 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

ff
e
rs

 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 o
f 

a
ll 

a
g

e
s
 t

o
 l
e
a
rn

 
a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
ir
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 2

.3
 –

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 n

e
w

 a
n
d
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

, 
d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
o
la

te
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 n

a
tu

re
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

.4
 –

 (
C

o
n
s
e
rv

in
g

 b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
) 

h
e
lp

s
 t

o
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 o

u
r 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 

b
y
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 o

u
td

o
o
r 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
, 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
 a

n
d
 

re
la

x
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 2

.4
 –

 E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 

v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

fo
r 

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 
c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 t

a
s
k
s
 

o
n
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

o
w

n
e
d
/m

a
n
a
g

e
d
 s

it
e
s
. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 6

.1
 –

 M
u
c
h
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 f

o
r 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 2

.5
 –

 P
ro

v
id

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 g

re
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
 

a
n
d
 w

ild
lif

e
 s

it
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4

.5
.2

 –
 N

a
tu

ra
l 
E

n
g

la
n
d
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

a
 m

o
d
e
l 
a
n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 g

re
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 2

.6
 -

 A
d
v
is

e
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
ir
d
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

a
n
im

a
ls

 a
n
d
 

p
la

n
ts

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 W

ild
lif

e
 a

n
d
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 

A
c
t 

1
9
8
1
(a

s
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
) 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5

.3
 –

 L
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 c

a
n
 p

ro
m

o
te

 
b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 2

.7
 –

 E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 t

h
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
n
 P

a
ri
s
h
 P

la
n
s
, 

to
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 h
a
b
it
a
ts

 a
n
d
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t/

c
re

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
 

N
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 (

T
h
e
 b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 d

u
ty

 
a
ls

o
 a

p
p
lie

s
 t

o
 P

a
ri
s
h
 a

n
d
 T

o
w

n
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 

it
 w

o
u
ld

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l 
to

 p
ro

m
o
te

 
s
u
c
h
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 t

h
e
m

.)
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 2

.8
 –

 I
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g

 
b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
n
to

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5

.2
 –

 E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 s

te
p
 t

h
a
t 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 c

a
n
 t

a
k
e
. 

 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 2

.9
 –

 E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 

m
o
re

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
ir
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 f

o
r 

n
a
tu

re
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

.8
 –

 P
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
g

ro
u
n
d
s
 o

ff
e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

n
a
tu

ra
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

o
 b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
n
 a

 
p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 
w

a
y
. 

8



 
A

c
ti
o
n
 2

.1
0
 –

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 t
o
u
ri
s
m

 
a
n
d
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
, 

w
ild

lif
e
 r

ic
h
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
. 

 

N
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 (

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 a

s
 b

e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l 
to

 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

.)
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 3

.1
 –

 M
a
in

ta
in

 a
 s

u
it
e
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 f

o
r 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
, 

a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 b

y
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

G
u
id

a
n
c
e
/D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4

.5
.2

 –
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f

o
r 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 f

o
r 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t.

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 3

.2
 –

 E
n
s
u
re

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4

.5
.2

 –
 S

tr
o
n
g

 a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 f

o
r 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
n
 L

D
F

s
 a

n
d
 L

D
P

s
 w

ill
 

e
n
a
b
le

 b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 f

u
ll 

a
n
d
 p

ro
p
e
r 

w
e
ig

h
t 

in
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
. 

  
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 3

.3
 –

 P
ro

v
id

e
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

a
n
d
 e

x
p
e
rt

 
a
d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
s
o
 t

h
a
t 

fu
ll 

re
g

a
rd

 i
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
p
e
c
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 h

a
b
it
a
ts

. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4

.6
 –

 K
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 (
fo

r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
l)
 a

re
 s

c
re

e
n
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
fo

r 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
e
ff

e
c
ts

 o
n
 b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 3

.4
 E

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

re
 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
q

u
a
lit

y
 e

c
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
s
u
rv

e
y
s
 

a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4

.6
 -

 G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 e

c
o
lo

g
is

ts
 t

o
 s

p
e
c
if
y
 w

h
a
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 w

it
h
 a

 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

fo
r 

it
 t

o
 b

e
 v

a
lid

. 
A

c
ti
o
n
 3

.5
 –

 O
b
ta

in
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

o
f 

s
it
e
s
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
la

n
d
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4

.5
.1

 –
 A

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 s

tu
d
y
 o

f 
b
a
s
e
lin

e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 t

re
n
d
s
 …

..
 e

n
a
b
le

s
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

w
e
ll 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 s

p
a
ti
a
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 s

e
tt

in
g

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

. 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 3

 –
 T

o
 g

u
id

e
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 

A
c
ti
o
n
 3

.6
 –

 I
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

t 
a
n
 

e
a
rl
y
 s

ta
g

e
 i
n
to

 s
it
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
e
fs

. 
S

e
c
ti
o
n
 4

.5
.2

 –
 S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 r
o
le

 i
n
 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

s
 a

p
a
rt

 o
f 

a
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
e
f.

 

9



A
c
ti
o
n
 3

.7
 -

 E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 t

a
k
e
 

u
p
 o

f 
b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 t

ra
in

in
g

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 6

.2
 –

 I
n
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 i
t 

m
a
y
 b

e
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

tr
a
in

in
g

 i
n
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g

 b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
, 

e
.g

. 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 o

r 
g

ro
u
n
d
s
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 3

.8
 –

 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4

.5
.4

 –
 L

o
c
a
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
L
o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
s
, 

re
p
o
rt

in
g

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 
R

e
p
o
rt

s
. 

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 3

.9
 –

 A
s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

a
d
o
p
ti
n
g

 P
A

S
2
0
1
0
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 –

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

K
. 

N
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
. 

(T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 I

n
s
ti
tu

te
, 

a
n
d
 

a
re

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 m

o
d
e
l 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

th
a
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 

a
d
o
p
t 

a
s
 a

 c
o
d
e
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.)

 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 3

.1
0
 -

 S
e
e
k
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

h
e
d
g

e
ro

w
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 H

e
d
g

e
ro

w
 

R
e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 

N
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 (

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ty

 
u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

A
c
t 

1
9
9
5
).

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 4

.1
 -

 P
ro

v
id

e
 e

c
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
, 

in
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
to

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

 
B

A
P

 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 6

.2
 –

 M
a
n
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
-

h
o
u
s
e
 e

x
p
e
rt

is
e
 t

o
 a

d
v
is

e
 s

ta
ff

 o
n
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
 

c
a
n
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o
 b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

  
A

c
ti
o
n
 4

.2
 -

 T
a
k
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 

le
g

is
la

ti
v
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

m
a
n
a
g

in
g

 o
u
r 

o
w

n
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 n
a
tu

re
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 s

it
e
s
. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

.3
 –

 D
u
ti
e
s
 f

a
ll 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 H

a
b
it
a
ts

 
D

ir
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 2

8
G

 o
f 

th
e
 w

ild
lif

e
 a

n
d
 

C
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 A

c
t 

a
s
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 a

n
d
 R

ig
h
ts

 o
f 

W
a
y
 A

c
t.

  
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 4

 –
 T

o
 a

p
p
ly

 a
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

h
e
n
 

m
a
n
a
g

in
g

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

la
n
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 4

.3
 –

 M
a
n
a
g

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
w

n
e
d
 S

S
S

Is
 

to
 r

e
c
o
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
ir
 f

a
v
o
u
ra

b
le

 
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

.3
 –

 T
h
e
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 e

x
p
e
c
ts

 
a
ll 

p
u
b
lic

 b
o
d
ie

s
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e
 f

u
ll 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 w

h
e
n
e
v
e
r 

th
e
ir
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
y
 

a
ff

e
c
t 

S
S

S
Is

. 

10



A
c
ti
o
n
 4

.4
 –

 S
e
e
k
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 f

o
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
w

n
e
d
 n

o
n
-s

ta
tu

to
ry

 n
a
tu

re
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 s

it
e
s
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

e
 a

n
d
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
ir
 b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
n
te

re
s
t.

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

.3
 –

 L
o
c
a
l 
s
it
e
s
 a

re
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 b

y
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e
 n

a
tu

re
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 v

a
lu

e
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 o
v
e
r 

3
5
,0

0
0
 

L
o
c
a
l 
s
it
e
s
 i
n
 E

n
g

la
n
d
, 

m
a
n
y
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

o
w

n
e
d
 o

r 
c
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 b

y
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 4

.5
 –

 M
a
in

ta
in

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 s

it
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

le
rt

 
d
a
ta

. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

.3
 –

 E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 s

it
e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 b

e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 e

x
te

n
t.

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 4

.6
 –

 U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
it
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

la
n
d
 a

n
d
 

p
re

m
is

e
s
. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

.2
 –

 A
 f

ir
s
t 

s
te

p
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 a
n
d
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 e

s
ta

te
 i
s
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
…

…
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
…

…
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 4

.7
 –

 S
e
e
k
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 t

a
k
e
 u

p
 

b
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
m

a
llh

o
ld

in
g

s
 o

f 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
g

ri
-

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
  

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

.7
 –

 L
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 k
e
y
 r

o
le

 
to

 p
la

y
 i
n
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

la
n
d
 f

o
r 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e
ir
 t

e
n
a
n
c
y
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

. 
A

c
ti
o
n
 4

.8
 –

 I
n
it
ia

te
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 n
e
w

 
ro

a
d
 v

e
rg

e
s
 o

f 
b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 c

u
tt

in
g

 r
e
g

im
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
is

 w
ill

 n
o
t 

c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
 s

a
fe

ty
. 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

.6
 –

 I
f 

m
a
n
a
g

e
d
 w

it
h
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 (

ro
a
d
 v

e
rg

e
s
) 

c
a
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 a

n
d
 a

c
t 

a
s
 c

o
rr

id
o
rs

 l
in

k
in

g
 

o
th

e
r 

h
a
b
it
a
ts

. 
A

c
ti
o
n
 4

.9
 -

 S
u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 b

ri
e
f 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

k
e
y
 p

u
b
lic

 s
p
a
c
e
s
 

h
a
v
in

g
 b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 v

a
lu

e
. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

.5
 –

 L
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

w
n
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

g
re

e
n
 a

re
a
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
, 

if
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
d
 s

y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
a
lly

, 
c
a
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

h
a
b
it
a
ts

 f
o
r 

w
ild

lif
e
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g

 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 g

e
t 

c
lo

s
e
 t

o
 n

a
tu

re
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 4

.1
0
 –

 H
a
rn

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 

u
p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
s
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

la
n
d
 f

o
r 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 6

.1
 –

 A
 v

a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 m

a
y
 h

e
lp

 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

. 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 4

.1
1
 –

 M
a
p
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

la
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
d
 

fo
r 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

n
 a

 G
IS

 l
a
y
e
r 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

.3
 –

 E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 s

it
e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 b

e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 e

x
te

n
t.

 

11



 
A

c
ti
o
n
 4

.1
2
 –

 E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 n

e
w

 p
la

n
ti
n
g

 a
n
d
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 o

n
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

la
n
d
 t

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 n

a
ti
v
e
 t

re
e
 s

p
e
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

h
ru

b
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
 a

n
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

w
ild

lif
e
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

.2
 –

 L
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 p

la
n
t 

la
rg

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

tr
e
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
ir
 l
a
n
d
, 

a
n
d
 

b
y
 u

s
in

g
 n

a
ti
v
e
 s

p
e
c
ie

s
 c

a
n
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 f
o
r 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 4

.1
3
 –

 P
ro

v
id

e
 b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o
 

g
ro

u
n
d
s
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 6

.2
 –

 I
t 

is
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

th
a
t 

tr
a
in

in
g

 i
n
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o
 b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

is
s
u
e
s
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
o
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
, 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

a
n
d
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
. 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 4

.1
4
 –

 E
n
s
u
re

 b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
s
 

s
y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
a
lly

 a
c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f

o
r 

in
 d

e
c
is

io
n
-

m
a
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 I

S
O

 
1
4
0
0
1
. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2

.3
 –

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 c

a
n
 h

e
lp

 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

s
y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
a
lly

 d
e
liv

e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

t 
a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
le

v
e
l 
o
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 …

…
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n
g

 
it
 i
s
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 a

b
o
u
t 

it
s
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 5

.1
 –

 P
la

y
 a

 l
e
a
d
in

g
 r

o
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 B

io
lo

g
ic

a
l 

R
e
c
o
rd

 C
e
n
tr

e
  

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4

.5
.1

 –
 L

o
c
a
l 
a
n
d
/o

r 
re

g
io

n
a
l 
re

c
o
rd

 
C

e
n
tr

e
s
 c

a
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 v
it
a
l 
ro

le
 i
n
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 o

b
ta

in
 g

o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 h

a
b
it
a
ts

 a
n
d
 s

p
e
c
ie

s
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 5

.2
 –

 M
a
in

ta
in

 s
it
e
 a

le
rt

 m
a
p
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 G

IS
 s

y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

.3
 –

 E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 s

it
e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 b

e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 e

x
te

n
t.

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 5

.3
 –

 S
e
e
k
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 

B
A

P
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 
h
a
b
it
a
ts

 a
n
d
 s

p
e
c
ie

s
 

N
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
. 

(T
h
is

 i
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

p
re

p
a
ri
n
g

, 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 a
n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 L

B
A

P
s
) 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 5

 –
 T

o
 c

o
lle

c
t 

a
n
d
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
ts

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 5

.4
 –

 U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
 o

f 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

 h
a
b
it
a
ts

 a
n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ie

s
 i
n
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

N
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
. 

(T
h
is

 i
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

p
re

p
a
ri
n
g

, 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 a
n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 L

B
A

P
s
) 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 6

 –
 T

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 t
h
e
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
, 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
it
e
s
 o

f 
b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 6

.1
 –

 P
ro

v
id

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

to
 l
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 a
n
d
 o

w
n
e
rs

 o
n
 w

ild
lif

e
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 c

o
v
e
ri
n
g

 s
it
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
ie

s
. 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5

.3
 –

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
a
y
s
 i
n
 

w
h
ic

h
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 c

a
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
 b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

a
d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

la
n
d
o
w

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

. 
 

12



A
c
ti
o
n
 6

.2
 –

 D
is

s
e
m

in
a
te

 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 

a
d
v
ic

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 o

th
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5

.3
 –

 a
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 6

.3
 –

 A
d
o
p
t 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s
 l
a
te

s
t 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
w

ild
lif

e
 s

it
e
s
 –

 “
L
o
c
a
l 

s
it
e
s
: 

G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
ir
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

s
e
le

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

(2
0
0
6
)”

, 
s
e
tt

in
g

 
u
p
 a

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 a

d
m

in
is

te
r 

th
e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4

.5
.3

 –
 I

t 
is

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 p

la
y
 t

h
e
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 r

o
le

 i
n
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

e
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
S

it
e
s
. 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 6

.4
 –

 T
a
k
e
 a

n
 a

c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 

G
ra

s
s
la

n
d
s
 F

o
ru

m
. 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2

.8
 –

 L
B

A
P

s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g

. 
T

h
e
y
 s

e
c
u
re

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

fr
o
m

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
fu

n
d
e
rs

 t
o
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
 p

la
n
s
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 6

.5
 –

 P
ro

m
o
te

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

g
ra

n
t 

a
id

 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
N

o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
. 

(T
h
is

 i
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

p
re

p
a
ri
n
g

, 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 a
n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 L

B
A

P
s
, 

a
n
d
 a

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 f
o
r 

m
a
n
y
 

y
e
a
rs

.)
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 6

.6
 –

 R
e
v
ie

w
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
g

re
e
m

e
n
ts

 u
n
d
e
r 

s
3
9
 o

f 
th

e
 w

ild
lif

e
 a

n
d
 

C
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 A

c
t 

1
9
8
1
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
y
 c

o
m

e
 u

p
 

fo
r 

re
n
e
w

a
l.
 

N
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
. 

(T
h
e
 p

o
w

e
r 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
te

r 
in

to
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
g

re
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 o

w
n
e
rs

 o
f 

k
e
y
 n

a
tu

re
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 s

it
e
s
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 s

3
9
 o

f 
th

e
 

W
ild

lif
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 A

c
t 

1
9
8
1
) 

a
s
s
is

ti
n
g

 o
th

e
r 

la
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 
a
n
d
 o

w
n
e
rs

. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 6

.7
 –

 P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 a

re
a
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 s

c
a
le

 p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
N

o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
. 

(T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 e

v
o
lv

in
g

 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
s
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 f

o
rm

 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
g

io
n
a
l 

S
p
a
ti
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
.)

  

     

13



14



        ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE DATE: 3RD DECEMBER 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  P.J.Yates, Development Control Manager 
01432 261782 

 

 
Polytunneldevelopmentreport3rdDec070.doc  

 POLYTUNNEL DEVELOPMENTS IN HEREFORDSHIRE 

Report By: Head of Planning Services 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To consider progress in the control of polytunnel development in the County since the 
matter was last considered by this Committee in March 2007 when the findings of the 
Polutunnel Review Working Group were reported. 

Financial Implications 

2. None 

Background 

3. The Council had operated a Code of Practice in respect of the use of polytunnels for soft 
fruit production from 2003. A significant case concerning Tuesley Farm, Waverley 
Borough Council was determined in December 2006 with the judgement being published 
in February 2007. In the light of that judgement the Polytunnel Review Working Group 
reported to the Environment Scrutiny Committee meeting on 12th March 2007, that 
changes were needed in the way the Council sought to control this type of development. 
The Committee agreed with the findings and submitted the recommendations to Cabinet 
for consideration.    Cabinet on 22nd March 2007 considered the issue and resolved,  
inter-alia, that all new polytunnels would henceforward require planning permission. A 
phased programme of enforcement action was also set out in the event that planning 
applications were not forthcoming. 

4. The Cabinet decision, in respect the statement that “all new polytunnel developments 
within the county…. be treated as development requiring planning permission” has been 
challenged by way of Judicial Review. In effect, the words used are too absolute and go 
beyond the tests established in the “Tuesley Case” and other related cases. It is 
anticipated that a revised wording will be agreed by Cabinet and the Judicial Review 
process can then be set aside. The fact remains that the large scale polytunnels used by 
the main growers of soft fruit in the county are of a sufficient size, scale, degree of 
attachment to the ground and permanence (i.e. the “Tuesley tests”) that they do need 
planning permission, and the relevant growers were informed of this view by letter dated 
27th March 2007.  

5. Since March 2007 planning officers have been in contact with all the main growers who 
use large scale polytunnels. In some cases a programme for removal has been agreed, 
in others planning applications have been submitted. Enforcement Action is now 
underway in respect of those growers who have not submitted applications and are not, 
apparently, intending so to do, and whose polytunnel installations damage material 
planning interests.  A full schedule of cases can be provided if needed. Where planning 

AGENDA ITEM 7

15



        ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE DATE: 3RD DECEMBER 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  P.J.Yates, Development Control Manager 
01432 261782 

 

 
Polytunneldevelopmentreport3rdDec070.doc  

applications are received they are being reported to the Area Planning Sub-Committee in 
the ordinary way. 

6. Following Cabinets decision to accept the findings of the Polytunnel Review Working 
Group and the work underway to implement that decision the Committee need to 
consider whether it requires further monitoring reports on this issue. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT that the Committee note the actions taken by Cabinet in 
response to the findings of the review outlined in the 
report and consider whether further reports are needed. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

•  None identified 

16



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3 DECEMBER 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Michael Hainge, Director of Environment 
 on 01432 260041 

 
DirectoratePlanperformancetoSept070.doc 

 ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE PLAN: 
PERFORMANCE FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD TO 
SEPTEMBER 2007 

Report By: Director of Environment 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To update Members on the progress towards achievement of the targets for 
2007-08 in the Directorate Plan. The report has a similar format to that used 
for the Integrated Performance Report (IPR), but reports on performance only. 

Financial Implications 

2. All expenditure in respect of these performance indicators and targets is from 
approved budgets. 

Content 

HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE 

• 2 of 57 Environment Directorate-lead indicators from the AOP are currently 
marked R.  A large proportion of indicators remain A, many of which are 
measured through the council’s Annual Satisfaction Survey.  The results of the 
survey, against which an accurate judgement can be made, should be available 
early next year. 

• 59% of indicators used in external judgements, where data is available, are 
currently showing an improvement against last year’s performance. 

• Both LPSA indicators are judged G. 

Progress against the Council’s AOP Priorities (Appendix A) 

1. Performance has been monitored for each indicator using the following system. 

  G On target/met target 

 A  Some progress/data not yet available so not possible to determine 
trend 

R   Not on target 

AGENDA ITEM 8

17



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3 DECEMBER 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Michael Hainge, Director of Environment 
 on 01432 260041 

 
DirectoratePlanperformancetoSept070.doc 

2. Analysis of performance against target by Council priority is detailed below: 

Judgement  Priority No. of 
Indicators R A G n/a1 

Improving transport and the safety of 
roads 

9 0 7 2 0 

Sustaining thriving communities 36 2 24 3 7 

Protecting the environment 10 0 4 3 3 
Understanding the needs and 
preferences of service users and Council 
Tax-payers, and tailoring services 
accordingly 

2 0 1 0 1 

Total number of indicators 57 2 36 8 11 

3. Details of the indicators within each of the priorities above are in Appendix A. 

Exceptions – indicators judged R at the end-of-September 

2 indicators are now judged as R.  These are: 

94 HC Grade for the year-on-year reduction in the total number of incidents and 
increase in total number of enforcement actions taken to deal with ‘fly-tipping’ 

The number of fly-tipping incidents has increased since May, following the 
introduction of permits at household waste amenity sites. Performance 
against this indicator has now levelled-off, but is not anticipated to improve 
above level 3 in the current financial year. 

96 HC % of abandoned vehicles removed within 24 hours from the point where 
the Council is legally entitled to remove the vehicle 

Performance fell during the summer. One team deals with both abandoned 
vehicles and fly-tipping; handling a significant, and initially unexpected, 
increase in fly-tipping incidents resulted in a reduction in the response 
times for abandoned vehicles. Arrangements have now been put in place 
to provide back-up for the team and performance has improved in recent 
months; however, as the target is 100% this will not be achieved this year. 

Local Public Service Agreement (LPSA) 

4. Both of the 2 LPSA targets were judged , G. 

                                                

1
 11 indicators have been considered as not suitable for awarding a judgement in this report, 

essentially because they are either tracker indicators or indicators that require a baseline to be set 
during the year. 

18



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3 DECEMBER 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Michael Hainge, Director of Environment 
 on 01432 260041 

 
DirectoratePlanperformancetoSept070.doc 

Local Area Agreement (LAA) 

5. For the LAA, no indicators were judged R, 4 A and 6 G.  These include the LPSA 
indicators. 

Direction of Travel and CPA (Appendix B) 

6. In addition to those indicators which the council measures itself against through 
its Annual Operating Plan, the council is externally judged on its performance 
against a number of national indicators, including Best Value Performance 
Indicators (BVPIs). Performance by the Environment Directorate against relevant 
indicators is shown in Appendix B.  Primarily, the council is judged on its 
performance against previous year, rather than against target, and this 
comparison will be used by the Audit Commission to inform the annual Direction 
of Travel Assessment in February 2009. 

7. Of those indicators where in-year data is currently available, the current direction 
of travel shows that 59% of indicators are on course to improve on last year, but 
16% of indicators are predicted to be worse than last year.  The focus of attention 
in the coming months will now be to at least maintain performance in those areas 
that are currently performing well against last year’s outturn, and to address the 
current under-performance in those areas that are falling below last year’s 
performance, where that is practicable. 

8. A forecast CPA service score for Environment should be available in time for the 
next report. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT subject to any comments which Members may wish to raise, the 
report be noted. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None 

19



20



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

  
- 

A
O

P
 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 A

G
A

IN
S

T
 T

A
R

G
E

T

G A R

T
e

m
p

la
te

n
/a

In
d

ic
a

to
r

Herefordshire Community Strategy (HCS)

Local Area Agreement (LAA)

Local Public Service Agreement - second generation (LPSA2G)

B
a

s
e

lin
e

May

July

September

Target

April-July

April-September

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 (

w
h

e
re

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t)

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

e
ri

o
d

5
4

H
C

S
%

 o
f 
s
tr

e
e

ts
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 a
re

a
s
 f
a

lli
n

g
 b

e
lo

w
 G

ra
d

e
 B

 f
o

r 

c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 (

lit
te

r)
� ���

� ���
� ���

1
7

%
2

1
%

1
6

%
<

=
1

5
%

G
G

M
o

n
th

ly
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 f
a

lle
n

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r’

s
 

o
u

tt
u

rn
, 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 a

h
e

a
d

 o
f 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r.

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t/
m

e
t 
ta

rg
e

t

S
o

m
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
/d

a
ta

 n
o

t 
y
e

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 s

o
 n

o
t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 t
re

n
d

N
o

t 
o

n
 t
a

rg
e

t

In
-y

e
a

r 
d

a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 s

o
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 u
n

ti
l 
d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
. 
 T

h
is

 m
e

a
n

s
 t
h

a
t,
 e

v
e

n
 w

h
e

re
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 
th

e
y
 n

o
t 
m

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
in

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
.

A
c
ti
o

n
s
 o

v
e

r 
a

 1
2

 m
o

n
th

 p
e

ri
o

d
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 l
it
tl
e

 o
r 

n
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r,
 b

u
t 
d

a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 a
n

n
u

a
lly

 t
o

 s
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 a

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

E
it
h

e
r 

th
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 m

e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 f
o

r 
m

e
a

s
u

ri
n

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r 
o

r 
n

o
 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d

M
a

x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

, 
s

a
fe

ty
, 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 w
e

ll
-b

e
in

g
, 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 o
f 

e
v
e

ry
 c

h
il
d

T
h
e
 i
n
d
ic

ta
o
rs

 a
re

 l
is

te
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

e
a
c
h
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

p
ri
o
ir
ty

 i
n
 t

u
rn

. 
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 l
e
a
d
 b

y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
re

 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p
e
n
d
ix

, 
w

it
h
 j
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
-o

f-
J
u
ly

.

K
E

Y

T
ra

c
k
e

r 

in
d

ic
a

to
r

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 

N
u

m
b

e
r

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r

P
la

n
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 

fr
o
m

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 a

s
 p

e
r 

A
O

P
 o

r 
th

e
 

m
o
s
t 

re
c
e
n
t 

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
 o

u
tt

u
rn

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 

d
a
te

A
O

P
 

ta
rg

e
t

IP
R

 j
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

ta
rg

e
t

R
e
d
, 

G
re

e
n
 o

r 
A

m
b
e
r 

(s
e
e
 K

E
Y

 a
b
o
v
e
)

C
o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 o

n
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

C
o
u
n
c
il 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

S
h
a
d
e
d
 b

o
x
e
s
 s

ig
n
if
y
 d

a
ta

 w
a
s
 

n
o
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 

p
e
ri
o
d
; 

u
n
s
h
a
d
e
d
 b

o
x
e
s
 s

ig
n
if
y
 

d
a
ta

 w
a
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 b

u
t 

n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

H
o
w

 o
ft

e
n
, 

a
n
d
 w

h
e
n
, 

w
ill

 

d
a
ta

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d

21



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

  
- 

A
O

P
 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 A

G
A

IN
S

T
 T

A
R

G
E

T

In
d

ic
a

to
r

Herefordshire Community Strategy (HCS)

Local Area Agreement (LAA)

Local Public Service Agreement - second generation (LPSA2G)

B
a

s
e

lin
e

May

July

September

Target

April-July

April-September

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 (

w
h

e
re

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t)

5
2

H
C

S
N

o
. 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 (
a

ll 
a

g
e

s
) 

k
ill

e
d

 o
r 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 o

n
 

H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 r
o

a
d

s
� ���

� ���
� ���

1
1

9
4

3

(J
u

n
e

)

8
4

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

<
=

1
3

4
G

G
M

o
n

th
ly

9
9

H
C

N
o

. 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n

ju
re

d
 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
o

lli
s
io

n
s

7
3

2
1

9
4

(J
u

n
e

)

4
6

4

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

<
=

7
8

8
G

G
M

o
n

th
ly

6
H

C
S

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
a

d
u

lt
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 t
h

a
t 
u

s
u

a
lly

 

tr
a

v
e

l 
to

 w
o

rk
 f
o

r 
th

e
ir

 m
a

in
 j
o

b
 b

y
 d

ri
v
in

g
 a

 c
a

r 
o

r 
v
a

n
 -

 o
n

 t
h

e
ir

 

o
w

n
 (

M
e

th
o

d
 o

f 
T

ra
v
e

l 
to

 W
o

rk
)

� ���
6

1
%

<
=

5
7

%
A

A
A

n
n

u
a

ll
y
 @

 e
n

d
-

o
f-

J
a

n
u

a
ry

7
H

C
S

a
In

d
e

x
 o

f 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 d

a
ily

 t
ra

ff
ic

 (
A

A
D

T
) 

v
o

lu
m

e
s
 i
n

to
 

H
e

re
fo

rd
 C

it
y
 

� ���
� ���

1
0

0
.6

3
<

=
1

0
8

A
A

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 e
n

d
-

o
f-

M
a

rc
h

7
H

C
S

b
In

d
e

x
 o

f 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 d

a
ily

 t
ra

ff
ic

 (
A

A
D

T
) 

v
o

lu
m

e
s
 o

n
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
 

ru
ra

l 
ro

a
d

 n
e

tw
o

rk
s

� ���
� ���

1
0

0
.6

3
<

=
1

0
9

A
A

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 e
n

d
-

o
f-

M
a

rc
h

7
2

H
C

In
d

e
x
e

d
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
y
c
lin

g
 t
ri

p
s

1
1

8
.9

9
=

>
1

1
8

A
A

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 e
n

d
-

o
f-

M
a

rc
h

7
6

H
C

N
o

. 
o

f 
p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
r 

jo
u

rn
e

y
s
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

o
n

 p
u

b
lic

 b
u

s
e

s
 i
n

 

H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 (
th

o
u

s
a

n
d

s
)

3
,4

3
3

,0
4

3
=

>
3

,9
4

8
,0

0
0

A
A

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 e
n

d
-

o
f-

M
a

rc
h

8
3

a
H

C
P

ri
n

c
ip

le
 R

o
a

d
s
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
1

4
%

<
=

5
%

A
A

B
i-

a
n

n
u

a
ll
y

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

&
 

M
a

rc
h

8
3

b
H

C
N

o
n

 P
ri

n
c
ip

le
 R

o
a

d
s
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
2

1
%

<
=

1
9

%
A

A

B
i-

a
n

n
u

a
ll
y

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

&
 

M
a

rc
h

S
u

s
ta

in
 t

h
ri

v
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 b

y
 s

e
c

u
ri

n
g

 m
o

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t,
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 c

u
s

to
m

e
r-

fo
c

u
s

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

, 
c

le
a

n
 s

tr
e

e
ts

, 
ta

c
k

li
n

g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s

n
e

s
s

 a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 p

la
n

n
in

g

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

T
P

 a
re

 b
e

in
g

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

T
e

m
p

la
te

s

S
u

rv
e

y
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 s

o
 m

o
re

 t
im

e
ly

 u
s
e

 

c
a

n
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
ta

. 
 T

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 a

s
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
IP

R
 t
o

 e
n

d
-o

f-
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r.

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
h

ig
h

w
a

y
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 p
la

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
, 
b

u
t 

w
a

s
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 
fl
o

o
d

in
g

. 
T

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
fl
o

o
d

in
g

 o
n

 

th
e

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

ta
ils

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 B
e

llw
in

 s
c
h

e
m

e

T
e

m
p

la
te

s

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

a
le

n
d

a
r 

y
e

a
r 

s
o

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
 

tr
a

c
k
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t,
 a

lb
e

it
 m

a
rg

in
a

l.

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 
ro

a
d

s

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 

N
u

m
b

e
r

22



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

  
- 

A
O

P
 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 A

G
A

IN
S

T
 T

A
R

G
E

T

In
d

ic
a

to
r

Herefordshire Community Strategy (HCS)

Local Area Agreement (LAA)

Local Public Service Agreement - second generation (LPSA2G)

B
a

s
e

lin
e

May

July

September

Target

April-July

April-September

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 (

w
h

e
re

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t)

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 

N
u

m
b

e
r

5
4

H
C

S
%

 o
f 
s
tr

e
e

ts
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 a
re

a
s
 f
a

lli
n

g
 b

e
lo

w
 G

ra
d

e
 B

 f
o

r 

c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 (

lit
te

r)
� ���

� ���
� ���

1
7

%
2

1
%

1
6

%
<

=
1

5
%

G
G

M
o

n
th

ly
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 f
a

lle
n

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r’

s
 

o
u

tt
u

rn
, 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 a

h
e

a
d

 o
f 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r.

9
2

H
C

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
re

le
v
a

n
t 
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 f
ro

m
 w

h
ic

h
 

u
n

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
g

ra
ff
it
i 
a

re
 v

is
ib

le
2

%
2

%
1

%
<

=
2

%
G

G
M

o
n

th
ly

9
3

H
C

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 f
ro

m
 w

h
ic

h
 u

n
a

c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e

v
e

ls
 

o
f 
fl
y
-p

o
s
ti
n

g
 a

re
 v

is
ib

le
1

%
0

%
0

%
<

=
1

%
G

G
M

o
n

th
ly

9
4

H
C

G
ra

d
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r-
o

n
-y

e
a

r 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 

ta
k
e

n
 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 ‘
fl
y
-t

ip
p

in
g

’ 
(G

ra
d

in
g

 1
 -

 v
e

ry
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

; 
2

 -
 

e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

; 
3

 -
 g

o
o

d
; 
4

 -
 p

o
o

r)

G
ra

d
in

g
 1

 

(v
e

ry
 

e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

)

1
3

1
G

R
M

o
n

th
ly

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
fl
y
-t

ip
p

in
g

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 h

a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 s

in
c
e

 M
a

y
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

e
rm

it
s
 a

t 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 

a
m

e
n

it
y
 s

it
e

s
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
h

a
s
 n

o
w

 

le
v
e

lle
d

-o
ff
, 
b

u
t 
is

 n
o

t 
a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 a
b

o
v
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
3

 i
n

 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

9
6

H
C

%
 o

f 
a

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 2

4
 h

o
u

rs
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 p

o
in

t 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 l
e

g
a

lly
 e

n
ti
tl
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 v

e
h

ic
le

9
9

%
9

4
.7

4
%

1
0

0
%

A
R

M
o

n
th

ly

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 f
e

ll 
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 s

u
m

m
e

r.
 O

n
e

 t
e

a
m

 d
e

a
ls

 w
it
h

 

b
o

th
 a

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 a

n
d

 f
ly

-t
ip

p
in

g
; 
h

a
n

d
lin

g
 a

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t,
 a

n
d

 i
n

it
ia

lly
 u

n
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
, 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 f
ly

-t
ip

p
in

g
 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
im

e
s
 f
o

r 

a
b

a
n

d
o

n
e

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
. 
A

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 p

u
t 
in

 

p
la

c
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 b

a
c
k
-u

p
 f
o

r 
th

e
 t
e

a
m

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

c
e

n
t 
m

o
n

th
s
; 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

s
 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 1
0

0
%

 

th
is

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r.

9
5

H
C

%
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

le
a

n
lin

e
s
s
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 a
re

a
6

6
%

=
>

6
6

%
A

A
A

n
n

u
a

ll
y
 a

t 
e

n
d

-

o
f-

J
a

n
u

a
ry

9
7

H
C

b
A

d
u

lt
 p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 C
L

E
A

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
S

-2
3

%
n

/a
n

/a
A

n
n

u
a

ll
y
 a

t 
e

n
d

-

o
f-

J
a

n
u

a
ry

9
7

H
C

h
A

d
u

lt
 p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 P
U

B
L

IC
 T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

-2
4

%
n

/a
n

/a
A

n
n

u
a

ll
y
 a

t 
e

n
d

-

o
f-

J
a

n
u

a
ry

9
7

H
C

j
A

d
u

lt
 p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 R
O

A
D

 A
N

D
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

R
E

P
A

IR
S

-5
1

%
n

/a
n

/a
A

n
n

u
a

ll
y
 a

t 
e

n
d

-

o
f-

J
a

n
u

a
ry

9
7

H
C

m
A

d
u

lt
 p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 T
H

E
 L

E
V

E
L

 O
F

 

P
O

L
L

U
T

IO
N

-4
2

%
n

/a
n

/a
A

n
n

u
a

ll
y
 a

t 
e

n
d

-

o
f-

J
a

n
u

a
ry

5
6

H
C

S
a

A
m

o
u

n
t 
o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 p

e
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
� ���

� ���
5

0
5

.8
2

k
g

1
2

7
.2

6
k
g

(J
u

n
e

)

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

2
1

9
.3

3
k
g

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

<
=

5
0

5
k

g
A

A
M

o
n

th
ly

5
6

H
C

S
b

%
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 g
o

in
g

 t
o

 l
a

n
d

fi
ll

� ���
7

2
.8

5
%

7
3

.6
8

%

(J
u

n
e

)

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

7
0

.8
5

%

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

<
=

6
8

.5
%

A
G

M
o

n
th

ly

P
ro

te
c

t 
th

e
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 p
ro

d
u

c
in

g
 m

u
c

h
 l
e

s
s

 w
a

s
te

, 
re

c
y
c

li
n

g
 m

u
c

h
 m

o
re

 o
f 

w
h

a
t 

re
m

a
in

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 c

a
rb

o
n

 e
m

is
s

io
n

s

23



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

  
- 

A
O

P
 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 A

G
A

IN
S

T
 T

A
R

G
E

T

In
d

ic
a

to
r

Herefordshire Community Strategy (HCS)

Local Area Agreement (LAA)

Local Public Service Agreement - second generation (LPSA2G)

B
a

s
e

lin
e

May

July

September

Target

April-July

April-September

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 (

w
h

e
re

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t)

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 

N
u

m
b

e
r

5
6

H
C

S
c

%
 o

f 
m

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
w

a
s
te

 (
e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

) 
re

c
y
c
le

d
� ���

0
%

0
%

(J
u

n
e

)

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

0
%

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

0
%

G
G

M
o

n
th

ly

5
6

H
C

S
d

%
 o

f 
m

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
w

a
s
te

 (
e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

) 
la

n
d

fi
lle

d
� ���

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

(J
u

n
e

)

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

1
0

0
%

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

1
0

0
%

G
G

M
o

n
th

ly

5
6

H
C

S
e

%
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
� ���

1
8

.7
1

%

1
8

.0
2

%

(J
u

n
e

)

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

1
9

.4
2

%

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

=
>

2
3

.9
7

%
A

A
M

o
n

th
ly

5
5

H
C

S
%

 o
f 
S

it
e

s
 o

f 
S

p
e

c
ia

l 
S

c
ie

n
ti
fi
c
 I
n

te
re

s
t 
(S

S
S

Is
) 

in
 f
a

v
o

u
ra

b
le

 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
� ���

2
2

%
A

n
/a

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 e
n

d
-

o
f-

M
a

rc
h

A
s
 a

 t
ra

c
k
e

r 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
n

o
 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 

in
 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 
re

p
o

rt

5
7

H
C

S
N

o
. 
o

f 
k
e

y
 s

p
e

c
ie

s
� ���

N
o

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

n
/a

n
/a

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 e
n

d
-

o
f-

M
a

rc
h

K
e

y
 s

p
e

c
ie

s
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

5
8

H
C

S
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l/
C

lim
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 (

C
a

rb
o

n
 p

e
r 

h
e

a
d

)
� ���

N
o

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

n
/a

n
/a

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 e
n

d
-

o
f-

M
a

rc
h

6
7

H
C

%
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il-

o
w

n
e

d
 o

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 l
a

n
d

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
a

 n
a

tu
re

 

c
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 d

e
s
ig

n
a

ti
o

n
, 
m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 f
o

r 
b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y

1
3

.4
2

%
=

>
1

5
%

A
A

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 e
n

d
-

o
f-

M
a

rc
h

D
a

ta
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
y
e

a
r-

e
n

d

1
0

2
H

C
C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
a

rb
o

n
 d

io
x
id

e
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

T
o

 b
e

 s
e

t
1

0
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 b
y
 2

0
1

0
A

A
A

n
n

u
a

ll
y
 @

 e
n

d
-

o
f-

M
a

rc
h

T
ra

c
k
e

r 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
, 
to

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 a

t 
y
e

a
r-

e
n

d

T
e

m
p

la
te

s

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
a

rg
e

t,
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o

n
s
 

s
u

g
g

e
s
t 
y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a

y
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t

24



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L
 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S

D
IR

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 T

R
A

V
E

L
 A

G
A

IN
S

T
 L

A
S

T
 Y

E
A

R
'S

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

� �
�

� n
/a

B
V

P
I

C
P

A

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 b

e
tt
e

r 
th

a
n

 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 e

it
h

e
r 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 o
r 

lik
e

ly
 t
o

 b
e

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s
 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 w

o
rs

e
 t
h

a
n

 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 e

it
h

e
r 

n
o

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 s
u

g
g

e
s
t 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
h

ig
h

 /
 l
o

w
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 g

o
o

d
 o

r 
b

a
d

; 
o

r,
 a

 d
ir

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n

t 
d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 
a

p
p

ly
 t
o

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

B
e

s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
- 

th
e

s
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

re
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

 C
P

A
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

K
E

Y

B
V

P
I

C
P

A
P

A
F

In
d

ic
a

to
r

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
B

a
s

e
li
n

e

M
ay

Ju
ly

Sep
te

m
ber

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 

o
f 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
T

a
rg

e
t

D
ir

e
c

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e

l
C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry

8
2

a
 i
 

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri

s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
e

n
t 
b

y
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f
o

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
H

ig
h

1
8

.7
1

%
1

8
.0

2
%

(J
u

n
e

)

1
9

.4
2

%

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

M
o

n
th

ly
2

3
.9

7
%

�

A
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

ls
o

 f
e

a
tu

re
 i
n

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

, 
p

ri
m

a
ri

ly
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n

 e
it
h

e
r 

th
e

 L
P

S
A

 o
r 

L
A

A
. 
 W

h
e

re
 t
h

is
 i
s
 t
h

e
 c

a
s
e

, 
th

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ic

e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 L

P
S

A
 a

n
d

 L
A

A
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 w

e
re

 s
e

t 
u

s
in

g
 h

is
to

ri
c
a

l 
o

u
tt
u

rn
 

d
a

ta
.

B
V

P
I

C
P

A
P

A
F

In
d

ic
a

to
r

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
B

a
s

e
li
n

e

M
ay

Ju
ly

Sep
te

m
ber F

re
q

u
e

n
c

y
 

o
f 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
T

a
rg

e
t

D
ir

e
c

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e

l
C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry

8
2

a
 i
 

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri

s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
e

n
t 
b

y
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f
o

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
H

ig
h

1
8

.7
1

%
1

8
.0

2
%

(J
u

n
e

)

1
9

.4
2

%

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

M
o

n
th

ly
2

3
.9

7
%

�

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

r 
- 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r
In

d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 t

o
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 

H
ig

h
 o

r 
L
o
w

 o
u
tt

u
rn

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r'
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 d

a
te

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

y
e
a
r'
s
 t

a
rg

e
t

C
o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 o

n
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

H
o
w

 o
ft

e
n
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
n
 w

ill
 

d
a
ta

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d

S
h
a
d
e
d
 b

o
x
e
s
 s

ig
n
if
y
 d

a
ta

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 

th
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
; 

u
n
s
h
a
d
e
d
 b

o
x
e
s
 s

ig
n
if
y
 d

a
ta

 w
a
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 

b
u
t 

n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

25



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L
 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S

D
IR

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 T

R
A

V
E

L
 A

G
A

IN
S

T
 L

A
S

T
 Y

E
A

R
'S

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

B
V

P
I

C
P

A
P

A
F

In
d

ic
a

to
r

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
B

a
s

e
li
n

e

M
ay

Ju
ly

Sep
te

m
ber F

re
q

u
e

n
c

y
 

o
f 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
T

a
rg

e
t

D
ir

e
c

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e

l
C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry

8
2

a
 i
i

T
o

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri

s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 s
e

n
t 
b

y
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f
o

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
H

ig
h

1
6

,9
2

1
.6

6

4
,1

0
0

.4
1

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

(J
u

n
e

)

7
,6

1
7

 4
5

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

M
o

n
th

ly
2

2
,4

4
4

.1
1

�
�

8
2

b
 i
 

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
e

n
t 
b

y
 t
h

e
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 o

r 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t 
b

y
 

a
n

a
e

ro
b

ic
 d

ig
e

s
ti
o

n

H
ig

h
7

.3
6

%
8

.3
%

(J
u

n
e

)

9
.7

3
%

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

M
o

n
th

ly
6

.8
5

%
�

8
2

b
 i
i

T
h

e
 t
o

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
e

n
t 
b

y
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 o

r 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t 
b

y
 a

n
a

e
ro

b
ic

 

d
ig

e
s
ti
o

n

H
ig

h
6

,6
5

7
.0

2

1
,8

8
8

.4
9

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

(J
u

n
e

)

3
,8

1
4

.6
3

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

M
o

n
th

ly
6

,4
1

3
.9

4
�

8
2

c
 i
 

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o

ta
l 
to

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 

w
a

s
te

 a
ri

s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
s
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

c
o

v
e

r 

h
e

a
t,
 p

o
w

e
r 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
e

n
e

rg
y
 s

o
u

rc
e

s

H
ig

h
1

.0
8

%
0

%

(J
u

n
e

)

0
%

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

M
o

n
th

ly
1

.0
5

%
�

8
2

c
 i
i

T
h

e
 t
o

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri

s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
s
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

c
o

v
e

r 
h

e
a

t,
 p

o
w

e
r 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 

e
n

e
rg

y
 s

o
u

rc
e

s

H
ig

h
9

7
4

.5
0

(J
u

n
e

)

0

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

M
o

n
th

ly
9

8
3

.1
6

�

8
2

d
 i
 

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri

s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 l
a

n
d

fi
lle

d
L

o
w

7
2

.8
5

%
7

3
.6

8
%

(J
u

n
e

)

7
0

.8
5

%

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

M
o

n
th

ly
6

8
.5

0
%

�

8
2

d
 i
i

T
h

e
 t
o

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri

s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 l
a

n
d

fi
lle

d
H

ig
h

6
5

,8
8

7
.5

1

1
6

,7
6

4
.6

2

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

(J
u

n
e

)

2
7

,9
9

5
.4

7

c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

M
o

n
th

ly
6

3
,7

9
2

.9
6

�
�

E
6

R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 (
B

V
P

I 
8

2
a

 i
 

+
 B

V
P

I 
8

2
b

 i
)

H
ig

h
2

6
.0

7
%

2
6

.3
2

%

(J
u

n
e

)

2
9

.1
5

%

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

M
o

n
th

ly
3

0
.8

2
%

n
/a

8
4

a
E

2
6

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
k
ilo

g
ra

m
s
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 

c
o

lle
c
te

d
 p

e
r 

h
e

a
d

 o
f 
th

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
L

o
w

5
0

5
.8

2
1

2
7

.2
6

(J
u

n
e

)

2
1

9
.3

3

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

M
o

n
th

ly
5

0
5

.0
0

�
�

8
4

b

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

y
e

a
r 

in
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
k
ilo

g
ra

m
s
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 

c
o

lle
c
te

d
 p

e
r 

h
e

a
d

 o
f 
th

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n

L
o

w
-3

.0
4

%
-6

.5
2

%

(J
u

n
e

)

-1
.4

2
%

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

M
o

n
th

ly
-0

.1
5

%
n

/a

9
1

a

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 a

re
a

 s
e

rv
e

d
 b

y
 a

 k
e

rb
s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

re
c
y
c
la

b
le

s

H
ig

h
6

8
%

7
0

%
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

7
0

%
�

9
1

b
E

4
5

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 a

re
a

 s
e

rv
e

d
 b

y
 a

 k
e

rb
s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

a
t 
le

a
s
t 
2

 r
e

c
y
c
la

b
le

s

H
ig

h
6

8
%

7
0

%
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

7
0

%
�

9
9

a
 i
 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 k
ill

e
d

 o
r 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 

(K
S

I)
 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
o

lli
s
io

n
s
 (

in
 2

0
0

6
)

L
o

w
1

4
7

<
1

3
4

�
T

h
is

 B
V

P
I 
u

s
e

s
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 2

0
0

6
. 
 T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
K

S
Is

 i
n

 2
0

0
6

 

w
a

s
 1

1
9

.

9
9

a
 i
i

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 

k
ill

e
d

 o
r 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 (

K
S

I)
 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 

c
o

lli
s
io

n
s
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r

L
o

w
4

%
-2

8
%

n
/a

9
9

a
 i
ii

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 

k
ill

e
d

 o
r 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 (

K
S

I)
 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 

c
o

lli
s
io

n
s
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 1

9
9

4
-9

8
 a

v
e

ra
g

e

L
o

w
-4

1
%

-4
6

%
n

/a

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
s
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 

2
0

0
6

. 
 O

u
tt
u

rn
 i
s
 n

o
w

 k
n

o
w

n
 (

s
e

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
),

 a
n

d
 

w
ill

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
T

ra
v
e

l 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n

t.

26



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L
 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S

D
IR

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 T

R
A

V
E

L
 A

G
A

IN
S

T
 L

A
S

T
 Y

E
A

R
'S

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

B
V

P
I

C
P

A
P

A
F

In
d

ic
a

to
r

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
B

a
s

e
li
n

e

M
ay

Ju
ly

Sep
te

m
ber F

re
q

u
e

n
c

y
 

o
f 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
T

a
rg

e
t

D
ir

e
c

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e

l
C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry

E
1

2
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
p

e
o

p
le

 k
ill

e
d

 o
r 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 

(K
S

I)
 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
o

lli
s
io

n
s
 (

in
 2

0
0

7
)

L
o

w
1

1
9

(2
0

0
6

)

4
3

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

8
4

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

(A
u

g
u

s
t)

M
o

n
th

ly
<

1
3

0
n

/a

9
9

b
 i
 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 (

a
g

e
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
1

6
 y

e
a

rs
) 

k
ill

e
d

 

o
r 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 (

K
S

I)
 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
o

lli
s
io

n
s
 (

in
 

2
0

0
6

)

L
o

w
1

3
<

1
5

�
T

h
is

 B
V

P
I 
u

s
e

s
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 2

0
0

6
. 
 T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
K

S
Is

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 2
0

0
6

 w
a

s
 1

0
.

9
9

b
 i
i

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 

k
ill

e
d

 o
r 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 (

K
S

I)
 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 

c
o

lli
s
io

n
s
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r

L
o

w
6

3
%

-7
%

n
/a

9
9

b
 i
ii

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

k
ill

e
d

 o
r 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 (

K
S

I)
 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 

c
o

lli
s
io

n
s
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 1

9
9

4
-9

8
 a

v
e

ra
g

e

L
o

w
-4

1
%

-3
0

%
n

/a

9
9

c
 i
 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n

ju
re

d
 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 

c
o

lli
s
io

n
s
 (

in
 2

0
0

6
)

L
o

w
7

3
2

<
7

8
8

�
T

h
is

 B
V

P
I 
u

s
e

s
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 2

0
0

6
. 
 T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
s
lig

h
t 
in

ju
ri

e
s
 

in
 2

0
0

6
 w

a
s
 6

6
3

.

9
9

c
 i
i

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n

ju
re

d
 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
o

lli
s
io

n
s
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r

L
o

w
-6

%
5

%
n

/a

9
9

c
 i
ii

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n

ju
re

d
 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
o

lli
s
io

n
s
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 

1
9

9
4

-9
8

 a
v
e

ra
g

e

L
o

w
2

%
1

0
%

n
/a

E
4

0
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
p

e
o

p
le

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n

ju
re

d
 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 

c
o

lli
s
io

n
s
 (

in
 2

0
0

7
)

L
o

w
6

6
3

(2
0

0
6

)

1
9

4

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

4
6

4

(c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

(J
u

n
e

)

M
o

n
th

ly
<

7
7

2
n

/a

1
0

0

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
d

a
y
s
 o

f 
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

, 
o

r 

ro
a

d
 c

lo
s
u

re
, 
o

n
 t
ra

ff
ic

 s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 r

o
a

d
s
, 
c
a

u
s
e

d
 b

y
 

ro
a

d
 w

o
rk

s
, 
p

e
r 

k
m

 o
f 
tr

a
ff
ic

 s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 r

o
a

d

L
o

w
0

0
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

0
�

1
0

9
a

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

w
it
h

in
 1

3
 w

e
e

k
s

H
ig

h
7

5
%

5
9

%
6

1
%

M
o

n
th

ly
7

6
%

�
�

D
e

s
p

it
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
a

lli
n

g
 b

e
lo

w
 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r'
s
 o

u
tt
u

rn
, 

e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 t
h

a
t 
la

s
t 
y
e

a
r'
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a

y
 s

ti
ll 

b
e

 

e
q

u
a

lle
d

1
0

9
b

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
m

in
o

r 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

w
it
h

in
 8

 w
e

e
k
s

H
ig

h
8

4
%

7
8

%
8

0
%

M
o

n
th

ly
8

5
%

�
�

1
0

9
c

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
‘o

th
e

r’
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

w
it
h

in
 8

 w
e

e
k
s

H
ig

h
9

2
%

9
1

%
9

1
%

M
o

n
th

ly
9

3
%

�
�

E
2

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

w
it
h

in
 1

3
 w

e
e

k
s
 (

to
-e

n
d

-o
f-

J
u

n
e

)
H

ig
h

6
3

.8
9

%

(J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
6

)

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 

@
e

n
d

-o
f-

J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
8

6
0

%
n

/a

E
2

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
m

in
o

r 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

w
it
h

in
 8

 w
e

e
k
s
 (

to
-e

n
d

-o
f-

J
u

n
e

)
H

ig
h

7
7

.1
1

%

(J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
6

)

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 

@
e

n
d

-o
f-

J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
8

6
5

%
n

/a

E
2

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
‘o

th
e

r’
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

w
it
h

in
 8

 w
e

e
k
s
 (

to
-e

n
d

-o
f-

J
u

n
e

)
H

ig
h

8
5

.8
4

%

(J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
6

)

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 

@
e

n
d

-o
f-

J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
8

8
0

%
n

/a

1
6

5
E

1
6

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 c
ro

s
s
in

g
s
 w

it
h

 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
d

is
a

b
le

d
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
a

s
 a

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
a

ll 

c
ro

s
s
in

g
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

re
a

H
ig

h
9

2
%

9
2

%
9

2
%

9
2

%
M

o
n

th
ly

1
0

0
%

�
�

1
6

6
a

E
2

1
S

c
o

re
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
a

 c
h

e
c
k
lis

t 
o

f 
b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

H
ig

h
9

8
.7

5
%

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 

@
e

n
d

-o
f-

M
a

rc
h

1
0

0
%

N
o

 d
a

ta

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
s
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 

2
0

0
6

. 
 O

u
tt
u

rn
 i
s
 n

o
w

 k
n

o
w

n
 (

s
e

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
),

 a
n

d
 

w
ill

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
T

ra
v
e

l 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n

t.

27



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L
 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S

D
IR

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 T

R
A

V
E

L
 A

G
A

IN
S

T
 L

A
S

T
 Y

E
A

R
'S

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

B
V

P
I

C
P

A
P

A
F

In
d

ic
a

to
r

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
B

a
s

e
li
n

e

M
ay

Ju
ly

Sep
te

m
ber F

re
q

u
e

n
c

y
 

o
f 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
T

a
rg

e
t

D
ir

e
c

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e

l
C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry

1
6

6
b

E
2

7
S

c
o

re
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
a

 c
h

e
c
k
lis

t 
o

f 
b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

H
ig

h
1

0
0

%

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 

@
e

n
d

-o
f-

M
a

rc
h

1
0

0
%

N
o

 d
a

ta

1
9

9
a

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
re

le
v
a

n
t 
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 

(e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

) 
th

a
t 
is

 e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 a

s
 

h
a

v
in

g
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 d
e

p
o

s
it
s
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

a
n

d
 d

e
tr

it
u

s
 t
h

a
t 

fa
ll 

b
e

lo
w

 a
n

 a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e

v
e

l

L
o

w
1

7
%

2
1

%
2

1
%

1
6

%
M

o
n

th
ly

1
5

%
�

T
h

e
 y

e
a

r-
e

n
d

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 
is

 1
5

%

L
o

w
5

%
0

%
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

<
=

2
0

%
T

h
is

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 r

e
ta

il 
/ 
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
la

n
d

 u
s
e

L
o

w
1

2
%

8
%

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
<

=
2

0
%

T
h

is
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 r
e

ta
il 

/ 
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
la

n
d

 u
s
e

L
o

w
1

7
%

1
8

%
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

<
=

2
0

%
T

h
is

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 h
ig

h
 d

e
n

s
it
y
 h

o
u

s
in

g

L
o

w
2

1
%

3
5

%
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

<
=

3
0

%
T

h
is

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 l
o

w
 d

e
n

s
it
y
 s

o
c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g

L
o

w
1

0
%

1
7

%
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

<
=

2
0

%
T

h
is

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 l
o

w
 d

e
n

s
it
y
 p

ri
v
a

te
 h

o
u

s
in

g

L
o

w
2

3
%

2
0

%
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

<
=

3
0

%
T

h
is

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 /
 w

a
re

h
o

u
s
e

 /
 r

e
ta

il 
s
h

e
d

s

L
o

w
2

0
%

1
4

%
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

<
=

2
0

%
T

h
is

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 m
a

in
 r

o
a

d
s

L
o

w
2

1
%

1
4

%
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

<
=

3
0

%
T

h
is

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 r
u

ra
l 
ro

a
d

s

L
o

w
2

9
%

2
9

%
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

<
=

3
0

%
T

h
is

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s

L
o

w
1

4
%

0
%

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
<

=
2

0
%

T
h

is
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o

 r
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

s

1
9

9
b

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
re

le
v
a

n
t 
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 

(e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

) 
fr

o
m

 w
h

ic
h

 

u
n

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
g

ra
ff
it
i 
a

re
 v

is
ib

le

L
o

w
2

%
2

%
2

%
1

%
M

o
n

th
ly

2
%

�

1
9

9
c

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
re

le
v
a

n
t 
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 

(e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

) 
fr

o
m

 w
h

ic
h

 

u
n

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
fl
y
-p

o
s
ti
n

g
 a

re
 v

is
ib

le

L
o

w
1

%
0

%
0

%
0

%
M

o
n

th
ly

1
%

�

1
9

9
d

T
h

e
 y

e
a

r-
o

n
-y

e
a

r 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 t
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 t
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 ‘
fl
y
-t

ip
p

in
g

’

L
o

w
G

ra
d

in
g

 1
 (

V
e

ry
 

E
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

)
1

1
3

M
o

n
th

ly
1

�

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rm

it
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

t 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 

w
a

s
te

 s
it
e

s
 t
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
fl
y
-t

ip
p

in
g

.

T
h

e
 s

c
o

re
 o

f 
3

 i
s
 p

re
d

ic
te

d
 t
o

 r
e

m
a

in
 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.

2
0

4
E

4
2

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

e
a

l 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

llo
w

e
d

 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 r
e

fu
s
e

 o
n

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
, 
a

s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
th

e
 t
o

ta
l 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

e
a

ls
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
re

fu
s
a

ls
 o

f 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s

L
o

w
2

2
%

3
0

%
3

2
%

M
o

n
th

ly
2

1
%

�

2
0

5
E

4
3

T
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 s
c
o

re
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
a

 ‘
q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
’ 
c
h

e
c
k
lis

t
H

ig
h

9
4

%
9

4
%

9
4

%
M

o
n

th
ly

9
4

%
�
�

2
1

5
a

T
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d

a
y
s
 t
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 r
e

p
a

ir
 a

 s
tr

e
e

t 

lig
h

ti
n

g
 f
a

u
lt
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

L
o

w
8

.7
8

2
.7

9
8

.4
3

M
o

n
th

ly
5

�

2
1

5
b

T
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 t
im

e
 t
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 r
e

p
a

ir
 a

 s
tr

e
e

t 
lig

h
ti
n

g
 

fa
u

lt
, 
w

h
e

re
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
im

e
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

f 
a

 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 O
p

e
ra

to
r 

(D
N

O
)

L
o

w
5

7
.1

6
0

2
2

M
o

n
th

ly
3

0
�

2
1

8
a

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
n

e
w

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 o

f 
a

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 2

4
 h

o
u

rs
 o

f 
n

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
H

ig
h

9
8

%
8

9
.1

6
%

M
o

n
th

ly
1

0
0

%
�

E
4

C
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 p

la
c
e

s
 (

lit
te

r 
a

n
d

 d
e

tr
it
u

s
)

n
/a

28



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L
 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S

D
IR

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 T

R
A

V
E

L
 A

G
A

IN
S

T
 L

A
S

T
 Y

E
A

R
'S

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

B
V

P
I

C
P

A
P

A
F

In
d

ic
a

to
r

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
B

a
s

e
li
n

e

M
ay

Ju
ly

Sep
te

m
ber F

re
q

u
e

n
c

y
 

o
f 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
T

a
rg

e
t

D
ir

e
c

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e

l
C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry

2
1

8
b

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
a

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 

w
it
h

in
 2

4
 h

o
u

rs
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 p

o
in

t 
a

t 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
s
 l
e

g
a

lly
 e

n
ti
tl
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 v

e
h

ic
le

H
ig

h
9

9
%

9
4

.7
4

%
M

o
n

th
ly

1
0

0
%

�

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 f
e

ll 
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 s

u
m

m
e

r.
 O

n
e

 t
e

a
m

 d
e

a
ls

 w
it
h

 

b
o

th
 a

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 a

n
d

 f
ly

-t
ip

p
in

g
; 
h

a
n

d
lin

g
 a

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t,
 a

n
d

 i
n

it
ia

lly
 u

n
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
, 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 f
ly

-t
ip

p
in

g
 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
im

e
s
 f
o

r 

a
b

a
n

d
o

n
e

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
. 
A

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 p

u
t 
in

 

p
la

c
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 b

a
c
k
-u

p
 f
o

r 
th

e
 t
e

a
m

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

c
e

n
t 
m

o
n

th
s
; 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

s
 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 1
0

0
%

 

th
is

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r.

2
1

9
b

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
c
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 a

re
a

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
re

a
 w

it
h

 a
n

 u
p

-t
o

-d
a

te
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

r 

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l

H
ig

h
1

2
.5

0
%

2
0

%
2

0
%

2
0

%
M

o
n

th
ly

2
6

.5
6

%
�

2
2

3

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 p

ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
ro

a
d

 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 w

h
e

re
 s

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d

L
o

w
1

4
%

B
i-

a
n

n
u

a
ll
y

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

&
 

M
a

rc
h

5
%

N
o

 d
a

ta

2
2

4
a

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
th

e
 n

o
n

-p
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 r

o
a

d
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 w

h
e

re
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
L

o
w

2
1

%

B
i-

a
n

n
u

a
ll
y

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

&
 

M
a

rc
h

1
9

%
N

o
 d

a
ta

2
2

4
b

E
1

1
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 u

n
c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 r

o
a

d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 w
h

e
re

 

s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
L

o
w

2
4

.2
8

%

B
i-

a
n

n
u

a
ll
y

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

&
 

M
a

rc
h

1
9

%
N

o
 d

a
ta

E
3

2
T

ra
d

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
, 
v
is

it
s
 t
o

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
H

ig
h

8
5

.7
1

7
M

o
n

th
ly

9
5

n
/a

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 t
y
p

ic
a

l 
fo

r 
th

is
 p

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.

E
3

3

T
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
, 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

,

h
ig

h
-

m
e

d
iu

m
-

a
n

d
 l
o

w
-r

is
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s

H
ig

h
8

3
.5

%

8
5

.3
%

8
7

.7
%

 

9
8

%

8
3

%

1
0

0
%

M
o

n
th

ly

 

9
2

%

9
3

%

9
0

%

n
/a

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 t
y
p

ic
a

l 
fo

r 
th

is
 p

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.

8
6

C
o

s
t 
o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 p

e
r 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
L

o
w

£
4

7
.0

3

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 

e
n

d
-o

f-

M
a

rc
h

£
5

2
.1

3
N

o
 d

a
ta

8
7

C
o

s
t 
o

f 
w

a
s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
p

e
r 

to
n

n
e

 o
f 
m

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
w

a
s
te

L
o

w
£

7
9

.0
9

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 

e
n

d
-o

f-

M
a

rc
h

£
8

2
.3

3
N

o
 d

a
ta

1
0

2
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
b

u
s
 p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
r 

jo
u

rn
e

y
s
 o

ri
g

in
a

ti
n

g
 

in
 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

re
a

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 e

a
c
h

 y
e

a
r

H
ig

h
3

,4
3

3
,0

4
3

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 

e
n

d
-o

f-

M
a

rc
h

3
,9

4
8

,0
0

0
N

o
 d

a
ta

1
0

6
E

2
3

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s
 b

u
ilt

 o
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 l
a

n
d

H
ig

h
7

6
.7

0
%

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 

e
n

d
-o

f-

M
a

rc
h

6
0

%
N

o
 d

a
ta

1
8

7
E

1
8

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
th

e
 c

a
te

g
o

ry
 1

, 
1

a
 a

n
d

 2
 f
o

o
tw

a
y
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 w

h
e

re
 s

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d

L
o

w
3

1
%

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 

e
n

d
-o

f-

M
a

rc
h

2
7

.5
0

%
N

o
 d

a
ta

2
0

0
a

D
id

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 s

u
b

m
it
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 (

L
D

S
) 

b
y
 2

8
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

6
 a

n
d

 

th
e

re
a

ft
e

r 
m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 3

-y
e

a
r 

ro
lli

n
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
?

 

n
/a

Y
e

s

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 

e
n

d
-o

f-

M
a

rc
h

Y
e

s
�

T
h

e
 y

e
a

r-
e

n
d

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 
is

 Y
e

s

2
0

0
b

E
4

4

H
a

s
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 m

e
t 
th

e
 

m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 (

L
D

S
) 

s
e

ts
 o

u
t?

n
/a

Y
e

s

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 

e
n

d
-o

f-

M
a

rc
h

Y
e

s
�

T
h

e
 y

e
a

r-
e

n
d

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 
is

 Y
e

s

2
1

6
a

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
‘s

it
e

s
 o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
’ 
[w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

re
a

],
 w

it
h

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
to

 l
a

n
d

 

c
o

n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o

n

n
/a

2
,8

9
6

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 

e
n

d
-o

f-

M
a

rc
h

5
,8

4
1

n
/a

S
u

rv
e

y
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 t
o

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

/ 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
s
o

 t
h

a
t 
m

o
re

 t
im

e
ly

 u
s
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
ta

.

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
h

ig
h

w
a

y
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 p
la

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
, 
b

u
t 

w
a

s
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 
fl
o

o
d

in
g

. 
 T

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
fl
o

o
d

in
g

 

o
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

ta
ils

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 B

e
llw

in
 S

c
h

e
m

e
.

29



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L
 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S

D
IR

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 T

R
A

V
E

L
 A

G
A

IN
S

T
 L

A
S

T
 Y

E
A

R
'S

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

B
V

P
I

C
P

A
P

A
F

In
d

ic
a

to
r

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
B

a
s

e
li
n

e

M
ay

Ju
ly

Sep
te

m
ber F

re
q

u
e

n
c

y
 

o
f 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
T

a
rg

e
t

D
ir

e
c

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e

l
C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry

2
1

6
b

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
it
e

s
 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n

t 
d

e
ta

ile
d

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 d
e

c
id

e
 w

h
e

th
e

r 

re
m

e
d

ia
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a

n
d

 i
s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
, 
a

s
 a

 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
a

ll 
‘s

it
e

s
 o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
’

L
o

w
0

.2

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 

e
n

d
-o

f-

M
a

rc
h

2
N

o
 d

a
ta

2
1

7
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

o
llu

ti
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
n

 t
im

e
H

ig
h

9
6

.8
0

%

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 

e
n

d
-o

f-

M
a

rc
h

9
6

.8
0

%
N

o
 d

a
ta

E
1

9
In

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 b

y
 t
h

e
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 
S

ta
te

 u
n

d
e

r 
T

ra
ff
ic

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
A

c
t 
p

o
w

e
rs

n
/a

N
o

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 

e
n

d
-o

f-

M
a

rc
h

N
o

n
/a

E
3

0
C

o
n

s
u

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
H

ig
h

8
2

.9

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 

e
n

d
-o

f-

M
a

rc
h

8
0

n
/a

S
u

rv
e

y
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g

 c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
. 
 T

h
e

 f
ir

s
t 
s
u

rv
e

y
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
, 
b

u
t 
re

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
y
e

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
.

E
3

1
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

H
ig

h
8

9
.6

A
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 @

 

e
n

d
-o

f-

M
a

rc
h

9
0

n
/a

S
u

rv
e

y
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g

 c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
. 
 T

h
e

 f
ir

s
t 
s
u

rv
e

y
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
, 
b

u
t 
re

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
y
e

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
.

8
9

E
3

8
%

 o
f 
p

e
o

p
le

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

le
a

n
lin

e
s
s
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

in
 t
h

e
ir

 a
re

a
H

ig
h

6
6

%
n

/a

9
0

a
E

8
A

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 

w
a

s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
H

ig
h

8
2

%
n

/a

9
0

b
E

8
B

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 w
a

s
te

 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
H

ig
h

7
0

%
n

/a

9
0

c
E

8
C

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 w
a

s
te

 

d
is

p
o

s
a

l
H

ig
h

8
6

%
n

/a

1
0

3
S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 p
a

s
s
e

n
g

e
r 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
H

ig
h

4
8

%
n

/a

E
1

4
S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 p
a

s
s
e

n
g

e
r 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

(t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 s
e

e
n

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
)

H
ig

h
7

0
%

n
/a

1
0

4
S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 b
u

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
H

ig
h

4
9

%
n

/a

E
1

5
S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 b
u

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 (

u
s
e

rs
)

H
ig

h
6

2
%

n
/a

1
1

1
E

3
S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
H

ig
h

7
6

%
n

/a

E
1

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
n

/a
G

o
o

d
n

/a

N
o

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

-0
8

N
o

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

-0
8

N
o

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

-0
8

N
o

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

-0
8

N
o

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

-0
8

N
o

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

-0
8

N
o

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

-0
8

T
h

e
s
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 f
ro

m
 2

0
0

6
 (

th
e

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

) 
w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

P
A

 

re
s
u

lt
s
 a

n
n

o
u

n
c
e

d
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 a
n

d
 2

0
0

9

N
o

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

-0
8

N
o

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

-0
8

N
o

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

-0
8

30



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3 DECEMBER 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Paul James,  
Democratic services Officer on 01432 260460 

 
WorkprogrammecoverreportDec070.doc  

 ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME 

Report By: Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1 To consider the Committee work programme. 

Financial Implications 

2 None  

Background 

3 In accordance with the Scrutiny Improvement Plan a report on the Committee’s 
current Work Programme will be made to each of the scheduled quarterly meetings 
of this Scrutiny Committee.  A copy of the suggested Work Programme is attached at 
appendix 1. 

4 The programme may be modified by the Chairman following consultation with the 
Vice-Chairman and the Director of Environment in response to changing 
circumstances.  

5 At the last meeting it was agreed that car parking issues be reported to the March 
2008 meeting. However, followng further consideration by the Chairman and the 
Director this agenda item has been brought forward to the February meeting. 

6 A number of other issues for consideration have been discussed with the Director 
and, depending on the Committee’s future instruction, may be added to the 
programme as it is further developed.  The issues are listed at the foot of the 
programme. 

7 Should any urgent, prominent or high profile issue arise, the Chairman may consider 
calling an additional meeting to consider that issue. 

8 Should Members become aware of any issues they consider may be added to the 
scrutiny programme they should contact either the Director of Environment or the 
Democratic Services Officer to log the issue so that it may be taken in to 
consideration when planning future agendas or when revising the work programme. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT subject to any comment or issues raised by the Committee the 
Committee work programme be approved and reported to 
Strategic Monitoring Committee. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

31



32



 
ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME - AT DECEMBER 2007 

 

10.00am Monday 25th February 2008  

Officer Reports • Good Environmental Management (GEM) 

• On-street parking in Herefordshire. 

• Highway and Footway maintenance.  Following 
consideration of the Herefordshire Satisfaction 
Survey and monitoring of Performance Indicators the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman have identified this 
issue for further Committee consideration. 

• Committee Work Programme 

9.30am Monday 31st March 2008 

Officer Reports • Review of Household Waste Recycling in 
Herefordshire: Executive Response to Scrutiny 
Review and Action Plan. 

• Review of Travellers Policy.  To report the findings of 
the Scrutiny Review. 

• Capital Budget Monitoring 

• Revenue Budget Monitoring 

• Report on Performance Indicators 

• Committee Work Programme 

Scrutiny Reviews  

 

Note:  
 
Details concerning the seminar for Members on Waste Collection and Disposal 
Options, referred to in Minute 32, are awaited. 
 
The date of further committee meetings will be notified once the Council diary has 
been confirmed. 
 
Items for consideration as the programme is further developed: 

 

• Scrutinising progress with the Local Transport Plan (LTP2) and any 
associated issues. 

• The effect on Herefordshire of changes to the Single Farm Payments 
system (e.g. hedge cutting, drainage ditch clearance) 

• Implications arising from the ‘Better Regulation Agenda’ (concerning 
regulatory inspections and enforcement – within the context of this 
Committee). 

• Any specific issues arising from Council Strategies or Plans. 

• Contribute to policy development of LTP3. 

• Consideration of revised/reviewed Flood Defence Policy. 

• Safety on the A49 and A465 trunk roads – the Director will update the 
Committee as appropriate. 

33



34


	Agenda
	
	Minutes of meeting held 9th November 2007
	6 Herefordshire Council's Strategy for Biodiversity Conservation
	Strategy for Biodiversity Appendix 1 S 40 Briefing Note 1
	Strategy for Biodiversity APPENDIX 3 - Comparison

	7 Polytunnel Developments in Herefordshire
	8 Environment Directorate Plan: Performance for the six-month period to September 2007
	Appendix A - Directorate AOP
	Appendix B - Directorate National Indicators2

	9 Committee Work Programme
	Work Programme Ap 1 at Dec 2007


